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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

While the impact of the global financial crisis has continued to
affect the world economy in 2009, signs of recovery emerged in
the second half of the year. However, the Chinese restaurant
business continued to face the increase in price of raw material
and staff costs in the intensive competitive market in Hong Kong.

On 22 January 2009, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the proposed acquisition of
the entire issued share capital (the “Acquisition”) of Totalbuild
Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (previously known as
“Zhong Guo Nian Dai Energy Investment (Hong Kong) Limited”)
(the “Target Company”); at a consideration of not less than HK$2
billion and not more than HK$10 billion (subject to valuation).
Target Company is the holding company and its subsidiary is
principally engaged in the investment in oil and natural gas project
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). China Era Energy
Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (the “China Era Energy”),
the subsidiary of the Target Company, has entered into the
Petroleum Contract with the China National Petroleum
Corporation (the “CNPC"). China Era Energy and CNPC shall has
the right in drilling, exploration, exploitation and production of
oil and/or natural gas within the area of the site located at North
Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, the PRC (the “Site"”).

On 21 September 2009 and 28 January 2010, the Company
entered into two placing agreements with Kingston Securities
Limited (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing Agent on
a best-effort basis, 604,780,000 and 725,000,000 new shares
of the Company (the “Placing Shares”) to not fewer than six
placees at a placing price of HK$0.39 and HK$0.45 per Placing
Shares (the “Placings”) respectively. The Placings had been
successfully completed and the Placing Shares were issued on 8
October 2009 and 22 February 2010 respectively. The net
proceeds from the Placings, which are in the amount of
approximately HK$229.9 million and HK$317.9 million
respectively, had been used for financing the Acquisition.
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PROSPECTS AND STRATEGY

While the Company still maintains its long-term confidence on
the natural gas and natural resources industries and is looking
for investment opportunities in these industries. The management
believes that the Acquisition will help making the stronger
company and creating value for our Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Looking forward, we will continue our proven strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing
return for our Shareholder. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to a
team of devoted staffs for their outstanding service and to our
Shareholders for your continued support.

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 April 2010
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OPERATING RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$161.8 million (2008: HK$339.2
million), decreased by 52.3% or HK$177.4 million. The decrease
in turnover was mainly due to the disposal of natural gas business
in December 2008.

The turnover of the Chinese restaurant business was
approximately HK$161.8 million (2008: HK$242.1 million),
dropped by 33.2% compared to the last year. The significant
decline in turnover was because the Group disposed three Chinese
restaurants in July 2009.

The Group made a loss for the year from continuing operation of
approximately HK$12 million (2008: HK$87.8 million), an
improvement of 86.3% compared to the last year. It was mainly
due to the absence of share-based payments to directors,
employees and consultants of approximately HK$59.5 million in
the last year. The loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company was significant reduced by 96.7% to approximately
HK$12 million (2008: HK$356.8 million) and the loss per share
was 0.37 HK cents (2008: 11.80 HK cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

2009 was a difficult year for our Chinese restaurant business, it
encountered the challenging market environment and threat
posed by human swine influnze. The Chinese restaurant business
continued to face pressure from persistently high raw material
and fuel costs, demand from the customers to reduce price and
the intensive competitive restaurant market in Hong Kong. Having
considered the loss making position of three Chinese restaurants
for the financial year of 2008, the Group disposed these
restaurants to avoid further losses. As the result, the turnover of
the Group’s Chinese restaurants for the year decreased by 33.2%
to approximately HK$161.8 million. A segmental loss of
approximately HK$ 1,509,000 (2008: profit of HK$53,000).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$11,476,000 (2008: HK$269,662,000). The
Group had no outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December
2009 and 2008.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no interest expenses
for the year (2008: HK$1,638,000 of which HK$287,000 was
capitalized in the construction in progress).

As at 31 December 2009, the Group's current ratio (current assets
to current liabilities) was approximately 4.6 (2008: 6.8). The ratio
of total liabilities to total assets of the Group was 7.6% (2008:
14.1%).

On 8 October 2009, an aggregate of 604,780,000 Placing Shares
at a price of HK$0.39 per share had been issued. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$229.9 million from the placing had been
used for financing the Acquisition. Details of information were
set out in the Company’s announcements dated on 21 September
2009 and 8 October 2009.

Charge of Assets

None of the assets of the Group were pledged as security for any
banking facilities and borrowing as at 31 December 2009 and
2008.

Exchange Exposure

It is the Group’s policy for its operating entities to operate in
their corresponding local currencies to minimize currency risks.
The Group had an insignificant exchange risk exposure under
review since the principal business was conducted and recorded
in Hong Kong dollars during the year.
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Capital Commitments

The Group had no material capital commitments as at 31
December 2009 and 2008.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2009 and 2008.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a total workforce of
188 (2008: 514). The Group remunerates its employees based
on their work performance, working experiences, professional
qualifications and the prevailing market practice.

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION AND MAJOR
DISPOSAL EVENTS

Very substantial acquisition

On 22 January 2009, the Company entered into the Agreement
with Totalbuild Investments Holdings Group Limited (previously
known as “Totalbuild Limited”) (“the Vendor”), Mr. Wang Guoju
(as a guarantor for the Vendor) and China Era Energy, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the
entire issued share capital of Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong
Kong) Limited (the “Totalbuild Investments”) (previously known

s “Zhong Guo Nian Dai Energy Investment (Hong Kong)
Limited”) (the “Target Company”). Totalbuild Investments holds
the entire issued share capital of China Era Energy. Sale Share at
a consideration of not less than HK$2 billion and not more than
HK$10 billion (subject to valuation). Under the agreement, the
Company paid a refundable deposit of HK$185 million to China
Era Energy designated by the Vendor on 23 January 2009.
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On 30 July 2009, the Company entered into the Supplemental
Agreement with the Vendor, Mr. Wang Guoju and China Era
Energy, pursuant to which the parties mutually agreed to extend
the long stop date from 31 July 2009 to 31 December 2009.
Under the supplemental agreement, the Company agreed to pay
a further refundable deposit of HK$260 million in cash or by
delivering a cheque issued in favor of the Vendor or its nominee(s)
by no later than 30 November 2009.

On 31 December 2009, the Company entered into the
Supplemental Agreement Il with the Vendor, Mr. Wang Guoju
and China Era Energy, pursuant to which the parties mutually
agreed to extend the long stop date from 31 December 2009 to
30 June 2010 or such other date as the Vendor and the Company
may agree in writing. Under the Supplemental Agreement Il, the
Company agreed to pay a further refundable deposit of HK$400
million in cash or by delivering a cheque issued in favour of the
Vendor or its nominee(s) on or before 30 April 2010 or such later
date as the Vendor and the Company may agree.

As at the date of this report, the Company has paid the refundable
deposits amounted to HK$110 million and HK$435 million to
the Vendor and China Era Energy respectively.

The Company has engaged a technical adviser to prepare the
technical report as required under Rule 18.07 of the Listing Rules
on 14 October 2009. However, as an additional time is required
for the technical adviser to study and analyse the relevant
information required for preparing the technical report such as
the document, information, data and reports relating to the
exploration, development and production of petroleum within
the area of the Site. The Company also requires additional time
to prepare and finalise the financial information to be included
in the circular such as the audited accounts of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2009, an accountants’ report on
the Target Group, pro-forma financial information on the Enlarged
Group and the valuation report. As such, an application has been
made to the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) by the Company for a waiver from strict compliance
with Rule 14.48 of the Listing Rules by further extending the
despatch date of the circular to the Shareholders of the Company
no later than 30 April 2010.
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Details of information were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated on 4 February 2009, 25 February 2009,
29 June 2009, 30 July 2009 and 31 December 2009.

Major Disposal of Subsidiaries

On 22 May 2009, Hon Po International Limited (the “Vendor”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Disposal Agreements with Speedy Fortune Limited (the
“Purchaser”), whereby the Purchaser acquired the entire issued
ordinary shares of Dragongem Development Limited, Jing Hua
(Allied) Limited and More Development Limited. These
transactions were duly completed in July 2009. Details of
information were set out in the circular to the Shareholders of
the Company dated on 15 June 2009 and the Company’s
announcements dated on 26 May 2009 and 30 June 2009.

Post Balance Sheet Event

On 28 January 2010, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, Kingston Securities Limited,
pursuant to which the placing agent procured, on a best-effort
basis, the placing of 725,000,000 new shares at HK$0.45 per
placing share. The placing of new shares has been completed on
22 February 2010. The net proceeds from the placing of new
shares amounted to approximately HK$317.9 million. Further
details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated on
28 January 2010 and 22 February 2010.

PROSPECTS
Chinese Restaurant Business

While the impact of the global financial crisis has confined to
affect the world in 2009, signs of recovery emerged in the second
half of the year. The Group will take a very cautious approach to
manage its Chinese restaurant operation and implement a tighter
costs control in the near future.
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Natural Resource Industries

The Group diversified its business into natural resources in 2007,
in light of the financial turmoil in global market in the year of
2008 and the financial risks associated with the continuation of
the liquified natural gas (“the LNG") business, the Company had
disposed the LNG business during the year of 2008. However,
the Group have been seeking investment opportunities from time
to time to broaden the Group’s sources of income.

On 22 January 2009, the Company entered into the Sale and
Purchase agreement to acquire from independent third party of
100% equity interest in China Era Energy which is principally
engaged in investment holding and has entered into the
Petroleum Contract with CNPC where the Petroleum Contract
has been approved by the Ministry of Commerce in the PRC on
24 April 2009, China Era Energy and CNPC shall have the right
in drilling, exploration, exploitation and production of oil and/or
natural gas within the area of Site.

The Petroleum Contract was entered into between China Era
Energy and CNPC on 22 December 2008 whereby China Era
Energy and CNPC agree to cooperate in exploration, development
and production of petroleum that may exist within the area of
the Site. The term of the Petroleum Contract is for a term of 30
years commencing from the date when the Petroleum Contract
has been approved by the Ministry of Commerce in the PRC.
Under the Petroleum Contract, China Era Energy shall provide
funds, apply its appropriate and advanced technology and
management expertise and assign its competent experts to
perform exploration, development and production of natural gas
and/or oil within the area of the Site.

In view of the prospect relating to natural resources, the Board
believes that the above acquisition will be a successful strategy for
the Company’s business and is an attractive investment opportunity
for the Group. The Board is of the view that, upon the completion
of this acquisition, the income stream of the Company will be
broadened.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Guogqgiang, aged 52, joined the Company as an
executive director in December 2009 and elected as the chief
executive officer on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his
study for Physics at Qufu Normal University. He has near 30 years
of working experience in exploration and exploitation of
Petroleum industry. He acted as senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli
QOilfield Company (the “Shengli Qilfield”) and awarded the Top-
notch talent from China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation and
Shengli Qilfield. Mr. Zhao is also an executive director of Xian
Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 353)
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Shi Yung, aged 62, joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2005. He was educated in Scotland, United
Kingdom. He has over 30 years of commercial experiences in
Vietnam, Hong Kong and the PRC and of which 10 years of
extensive experience in management of casino, entertainment
centre and is an expertise in restaurant operation.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, aged 43, joined the Group in February
2004 and promoted to executive director and chief financial
officer in October 2005. He has over 15 years’ experiences in
accounting and auditing fields including over 10 years’ accounting
and auditing experience in other public listed companies prior to
joining the Group in February 2004. Mr. Chui is also an executive
director of ZMAY Holdings Limited (stock code: 8085) and an
independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148) both of which are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu Baohe, aged 63, joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2009. He has been a Professor grade Senior
Engineer in the Petroleum Industry for nearly 40 years. He
graduated from his studies for Exploration and Exploitation of
Petroleum Field at the Beijing Petroleum Institute (renamed as
China University of Petroleum) in 1970. After that, he acted as
Senior Engineer, Supervisor of Geological Research Center and
President at the Shengli Petroleum Administrative Bureau of CNPC
until 1993. In 1994, Mr. Liu was appointed as Deputy President
of the Exploration and Exploitation Department of CNPC, and
was promoted as President from 1996 to 1999. From January
2000 to August 2001, Mr. Liu acted as Deputy General Manager
of the Exploration and Exploitation Division of CNPC. From
September 2001 to November 2005, he acted as Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of CNPC and took charge of Petroleum and
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Gas Exploration and Exploitation operations. Afterwards, Mr. Liu
acted as Deputy President of the Biomass Energy Team of CNPC,
supervising the new energy development, while he presided as
the Chief Executive Officer of China Petroleum Exploration
Development Company Limited, supervising the International
Exploration and Exploitation and Natural Gas Pipelines Operation,
till his retirement in late 2008.

Mr. Wang Ligang, aged 36, joined the Company as an executive
director in December 2009. He graduated at Shandong Provincial
Party School. From 1993, he engaged in the management of
underground operation technology and acted as assistant political
engineer in Shengli Qilfield JlA 3 — A &. He has near 15 years of
working experience in Petroleum Industry.

Ms. Zheng Ke Wen, aged 28, joined the Company as executive
director in December 2009. She graduated from Finance School
of Hunan University in 2004 and got a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Finance (Money and Banking). She holds a Master of Arts in
Finance and Investment in University of Exeter, UK. She also holds
a Certificate of Accounting Professional issued by Ministry of
Finance PRC. From 2005, Ms. Zheng acted as Office Assistant in
Traffic Department of Exeter County Council in England, Manager
Assistant in Gateway Education Corporation UK Limited and
Personal Financial Service Senior Consultant in HSBC China
Corporate Limited (“HSBC China”), Beijing Branch. She has most
experience in the financial industry and analysis of the financial
products, provide banking advisory and financial investment
business planning.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong Tik Tung, Fcca, cpa (Practising), aged 53, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive director in December
2009. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is an executive
director, chief financial officer, company secretary and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 720) which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and he is an independent non-executive
director of Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited (stock code:
112) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Yin Guohui, aged 28, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in December 2009. He graduated from
his study for English at Hebei Polytechnic University in 2005. After
that, he joined BEILFREERMAMR AT and engaged in
foreign trade, foreign media publicity and promotion, secretarial
work of president etc.. He acted as secretarial duty in China’s
onshore oil development foreign cooperation projects.

Ms. Zhang Wei, aged 26, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in December 2009. She graduated from
School of Information Science & Technology, Beijing Institute of
Technology in 2005 and got a Bachelor of Information Science &
Technology degree in Automatic Control. In 2009, she also held
a Certificate of Accounting Professional issued by Ministry of
Finance PRC. From 2005, Ms. Zhang acted as Assistant General
Manager in Beijing Sculpting in Time Café Co., Ltd, Manager in
Import and Export Department of College of Modern Science &
Technology, China Jiliang University and Premier Customer
Relationship Officer in HSBC China, Beijing Branch. At her tenure
of HSBC China, she was mainly responsible for relationship
management and improvement; therefore she got extensive
experiences in financial services for banks and customer
relationship prospects planning and implementation of banking
financial services.
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OVERVIEW

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate
governance standard and procedures. The board of directors of
the Company recognizes the importance of and benefit from good
corporate governance practices. We believe that improvement
in corporate governance not only assists the Company in effective
supervision and control on its business operation, but also attracts
investment from international institutional investors, thereby
creating and enhancing Shareholders’ Value.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices ("CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, except for Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
which states that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
(the “CEO") should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual and the division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive officer should clearly established
and set out in writing. Since the resignation of Mr. Chan Wai
Keung as the chairman of the Board and CEO of the Company
on 1 October 2009, the position of chairman is vacated. The
Board is currently identifying the suitable candidate to fill the
vacancy and will ensure that the chairman will be appointed as
soon as possible. Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG
Code, the chairman of the board should attend the annual general
meeting (“AGM"). However, the chairman is vacated. Mr. Zhao
Guogiang as the CEO will attend the AGM and will be available
to answer questions at the AGM. The Company carries out
periodically reviews its corporate governance practice to ensure
that these continue to meet the requirement of CG Code.

1. Corporate Governance Practice

a)  With respect to the compliance with paragraph A of
the CG Code, the Company has carried out the
following corporate governance practices:

The Company has held twenty Board meetings in the
year of 2009. Directors have been consulted to advice
the agenda of the Board meeting. Sufficient notice
of the Board meeting has been given to the Directors.
Minutes of the Board and the Board Committees are
recorded in sufficient details and kept by the company
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secretary for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any director. Directors were
supplied with adequate and relevant information in a
timely manner to enable them forming decision in
the relevant meetings. The composition of the Board
is shown on page 19 of this report. At every AGM,
one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not exceeding one-third shall
retire from office. A director appointed by the Board
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition shall hold office
until the next general meeting or the next AGM. Every
Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company.
Details of the directors attendance in different
meetings are set out on page 20. Agreed procedures
are in place providing to the members of the Board
and/or committee to seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses to assist them to
discharge their duties.

For other details of the responsibilities of directors,
please refer to the section “Board of Directors”.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph B of
the CG Code, the Company has established a
Remuneration Committee with specific written terms
of reference, details of which are set out in page 22
of this Annual Report.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph C of
the CG Code, the Company has carried out the
following corporate governance practices:

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of financial and other
information put before the Board for approval. The
Company has announced the result of 2009 on
26 April 2010. A statement by the auditors about their
reporting responsibilities is included in Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 35 of this Annual Report.
The details of the internal control of the Company
and the Audit Committee are set out under the section
“Internal Control and Internal Audit” below.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control
system for the Group to safeguard investments of the
Shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.
The system of internal control aims to help achieving
the Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets
and maintaining proper accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information. However,
the design of the system is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure when
business objectives are being sought. Management
has conducted regular reviews during the year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering
all material controls in area of financial, operational
and compliance controls, various functions for risks
management as well as physical and information
systems security. The chief finance officer (“CFO") has
reported to the Audit Committee from time to time
during the year, in conjunction with key findings
identified by the external auditor, findings and actions
or measures taken in addressing those internal
controls. The Audit Committee in turn reports any
material issues to the Board. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, also sets targets for and reviews
plan and progress on continuous improvement work
of the Company’s internal control system with the CFO
on a periodic basis.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph D of
the CG Code, the Company has carried out the
following corporate governance practices:

When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has
given clear directions as to the powers of
management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstance where management shall report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before
making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has set up
two committees, for details please refer to the relevant
sections below.
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e)  With respect to the compliance with paragraph E of
the CG Code, the Chairman of the Company and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee attend in the AGM
to answer questions raised up in the meeting.
However, the Chairman is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang
as the CEO will attend the AGM and will be available
to answer questions at the AGM. The procedures for
demanding a poll by the Shareholders were
incorporated in every circular issued during the
financial year ended 31 December 2009.

On review the CG Code, the Company has complied with
all the Code Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2009, except with deviation from code provision
A4.1 and A4.2 details of which are explained below.

f) Pursuant to A4.1 and A4.2 of the CG Code, those
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election while all directors
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

For the year under review, all non-executive directors,
including independent non-executive directors, of the
Company have not been appointed for a specific term
but they are subject to retirement by rotation and shall
be eligible for re-election at AGM of the Company in
line with the Company’s Articles of Association. As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the CG Code.
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Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted the full set of Model Code set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of the
conduct for securities transactions by directors (the “Model
Code"). The prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure
requirements in the Model Code apply to specified
individuals including the Group’s senior management and
also persons who are privy to price sensitive information of
the Group. Having made specific enquiry of all directors,
the Board confirms that all the directors of the Company
have complied with the Model Code regarding directors’
securities transactions during the year and up to the date
of publication of this Annual Report.

Board of Directors

(@) Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board
comprises a total of nine members including six
executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors. Members of the Board have
different professional and relevant industry
experiences and background so as to bring in valuable
contributions and advices for the development of the
Group’s business. One-third of the Board is
independent non-executive directors and one of them
is a qualified accountant.

(b) The Company has received written annual
confirmation from each independent non-executive
director of their independence to the Group. The
Group considered that all independent non-executive
directors meets the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The
names of the directors and their respective biographies
are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this Annual Report.
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The Board meets periodically with the management (c)
to discuss the Group's strategies development and to
review the business operation. The Board also
monitors and controls financial performance in pursuit
of the Group’s strategic objectives. The names of the
directors during the financial year and their individual

attendance of are set out below:
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Meetings entitle to attend

HERE, ARLEZESHE
Audit Remuneration
Name Board Committee Committee
®H Ezg EVZES yHzEe
Executive Directors: HITEE !
Mr. Zhao Guogiang e 4/6 N/A i A N/A i AR
(Chief Executive Officer) (TTH#%)
(appointed on 18 December 2009) (RZFENF
+ZAT/NHEZA)
Mr. Chan Shi Yung PR 20120 N/AT3E B N/AT3E B
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau ERAE 20120 N/AT 33 N/AT 38 B
Mr. Liu Baohe HEMEE (R-_FENEF 0/10 N/AT N/AT
(appointed on 2 October 2009) +H-HEZA)
Mr. Wang Ligang FTulsE (RZFENE 4/6 N/ATE A N/AT 8 A
(appointed on 18 December 2009) TZAT/NAEZF)
Ms. Zheng Ke Wen PRNa+ (RZFENE 2/5 N/AT 33 B N/AT 38
(appointed on 22 December 2009) +ZAZ+-HEZH)
Mr. Chan Wai Keung BRERLE 9/10 N/AT 38 N/AT 8
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFTHEE)
(resigned on 1 October 2009) (R=ZZFZNF+H—HET)
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing BREIS % & (TR 484 13 N/AT3E B N/AT 38
(Chief Executive Officer) (R-ZEZNF+H-H
(appointed on 2 October 2009 BEZE TRZFTNF
and resigned on 1 December 2009) +ZA—HE)
Mr. Wang Xiang Jun TRERE (RZFENE 5/10 N/ATE A N/ATE A
(resigned on 1 October 2009) +H—HE(T)
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BV HHTEE :
Mr. Wong Tik Tung TRREE (RZFENEF 0/0 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 30 December 2009) TZA=THEZ)
Mr. Yin Guohui BREELEE (R-FEAF 1/4 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 22 December 2009) TZAZ+ZHEZF)
Ms. Zhang Wei RELZT (RZFENE 2/4 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 24 December 2009) +ZA=+mA ;g;;; f£)
Mr. Chang Kin Man BRELE (R-FTNF 11/19 22 212
(resigned on 30 December 2009) TZA=THEF)
Mr. Ip Wing Lun ExtmEE (RZZEENE 15/16 212 212
(resigned on 24 December 2009) FTZAZTHAFT)
Ms. Li Yuen Yu, Alice FEREE (R-FENF 415 172 12
(resigned on 22 December 2009) +-A-+-HEH)
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The Board overseas the Group's strategic
development, and determine the objectives, strategies
and policies of the Group.

The major issues which were brought before the Board
for their decisions during the year include:

i. Proposals related to potential acquisition,
investments, or any significant capital
expenditures; and

ii. Formulation of operational strategies and review
of its financial performance and results and the
internal control system.

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
the Company maintains sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investments
and the Company’s assets.

Two board committees, namely, the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, have been
established to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s
affairs.

The Board also has delegated the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group's
businesses to management of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of financial
statements for Board approval before publishing,
execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

4. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(a)

Up to the date of this report, the positions of the
Chairman of the Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang
was elected as the chief executive officer on 29
December 2009.
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(b)  The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice.
With the support of the senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at board meeting.

(c)  The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. He is also responsible
for assisting the Chairman of the Board in developing
strategic plans and formulating the company practices
and procedures, business objectives, and risk
assessment for the Board'’s approval.

5. Non-executive Directors 5.

All non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, of the Company, have not been
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in the AGM in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

6. Remuneration of Directors 6.

(@) The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee since 23 September 2005 with written
terms of reference as disclosed on the Company’s
websites. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee include the following:—

i. To make recommendation to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;
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To have the delegated responsibility to
determine the specific remuneration packages
of all executive directors and senior
management, according to the major scope,
responsibilities and duties, importance of
position of the directors and the senior
management as well as the remuneration level
of the related position in the market, including
benefit in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments which include
compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment and make
recommendations to the board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

To review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time
to time;

To review and approve the compensation
payable to executive directors and senior
management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to
ensure that such compensation is determined
in accordance with relevant contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company;

To ensure that no director or any of his associates
shall be involved in any decisions as to their own
remuneration; and

To advise Shareholders on how to vote with
respect to any service contracts of directors that
require Shareholders’ approval under the Listing
Rules.

Up to the date of this report, the members of
Remuneration Committee comprised Mr. Wong Tik
Tung who act as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Mr. Yin Guohui and Ms. Zhang Wei, all
of them are independent non-executive directors of
the Company.

Vi.

BERKAEREEE SR ER
Berzals BELBE B
A AR5 AR R R R B
KYE - BEZBATEZENSR
EREZREHMES  BREE
M - RASENREE (B
TEBER - RIS ERRE L
KB ARBMIERTESRZ
FHRAESSFEHER

SDEEZRRTRFRZEETR
N BIR - B R AEERIRAN
ZFH

B RIOESHT AR RS LS
EHARITES LA EEES
(2 BBt - R BRS04 Ty IR 15
A N EREE R AR
AFRARE :

EREFHNRZEMHEALH
BEYRBRERSTHMORE
K

R SRR S BT (AT AR 8 L A8
BREIEZ EEREA DRA
FETTER

EEARESEH FHZBEGKE
BREIKRREE HMEEEXE) -
BREELEERKRELL - FFEHA/XN
DB ZBUIFAITES -

23



CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A Bl 8¢ )R F 2 4% ik B R A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
R RW

24

() The number of remuneration committee meeting held
during the year and record of individual attendance
of members, on a named basis, at meetings held
during was set out in section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

(d) The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
was set up by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

(e)  The emolument of the directors of the Company are
determined by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

(f)  The Group’s share option scheme as described on page
31 of this Annual Report is adopted as the Group'’s
long-term incentive scheme.

Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a nomination committee, and
the power to nominate or appoint additional directors is
vested in the Board according to the articles of association
of the Company, in addition to the power of the
Shareholders to nominate any person to become a director
of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and the Law of Cayman Islands.

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the
composition of the Board whenever the Company requires
to meet the business demand, opportunities and challenges
and to comply with the laws and regulations. The
nomination procedures basically follow the articles of
association which empowers the Board from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a director either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The
Directors will select and evaluate the balance the skills,
qualification, knowledge and experience of the candidate
to the directorship as may be required by the Company
from time to time by such means as the Company may
deems fit. The Directors shall consider the candidate from
a wide range of backgrounds, on his/her merits and against
objective criteria set out by the Board and taking into
consideration his/her time devoted to the position.
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8. Auditor’s remuneration 8.

For the financial year, BDO Limited, the auditor of the
Company, received approximately HK$580,000 in respect
of audit service and HK$25,000 non-audit service provided
to the Group. The non-audit service represented the
professional service for providing a comfort letter on
sufficiency of working capital for major disposal of
subsidiaries. The auditor’s remuneration has been duly
approved by the Audit Committee and there was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of auditor.

9. Audit Committee 9.

(@  The Audit Committee of the Company was established
since 30 January, 2002 comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Tik Tung
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yin Guohui
and Ms. Zhang Wei. Mr. Wong Tik Tung is certified
public accountants for many years. In the opinion of
the Board, the members of the Audit Committee have
sufficient financial management expertise to discharge
their duties.

(b)  The number of Audit Committee meetings held during
the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings held was
set out in section headed “Corporate Governance
Report”.

(c)  The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board to
assess matters related to the financial statements of
accounts and to provide recommendations and
advices, including but not limited to the followings:—

to consider the appointment of the external
auditors, the audit fees, and any questions of
their resignation of dismissal;

i.  todiscuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the
audit, and to ensure co-ordination between the
auditors where more than one audit firm are
involved;

iii.  toreview, in draft form, the Company’s annual
report and accounts, half-year report and to
provide advice and comment thereon to the
Board;
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iv.  to review external auditor’s management letter
and management'’s response;

V. to review the internal audit programme, ensure
co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company;

vi. to consider the major findings of internal
investigations and management’s response;

vii.  to review compliance with regulatory and legal
requirements of the Company;

viii. to discuss problems and observations arising
from the interim and final audits, and any
matters the auditors may wish to discuss (in the
absence of the executive Board members and/
or the management of the Company where
necessary);

ix. toreview the Company’s statement on internal
control systems prior to endorsement by the
Board;

X.  to consider any significant or unusual items that
are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports
and accounts and must give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the
Company’s qualified accountant or auditors;

In addition to the above tasks regarding to the
Company’s financial statement, the Audit Committee
should also to consider any other matters, as defined
by the Board from time to time; and to conduct
interviews with any director, manager, financial
controller upon their resignation in order to ascertain
the reasons for his departure;

The Audit Committee acknowledges its responsibility
in maintaining sound and effective internal control
system of the Group to safeguard investments of the
shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The Group’s Annual Report for the year ended
31 December 2009 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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10.

Shareholder Rights and Investor Relations

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at Shareholders’ meetings
are contained in the Company’s articles of association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll
procedures are included in all circulars to Shareholders and
will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange on the business day
following the Shareholders’” meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the Chairmen of the
Audit Committee and of the Remuneration Committee, or
in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, are available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the Board should attend the AGM. However,
the chairman of the Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang
as the chief executive officer will attend the AGM and will
be available to answer questions at the AGM.

Separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in
an informative and timely manner.

By the Order of the Board

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 April 2010
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The Directors present herewith the Annual Report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activity of the Company’s principal subsidiaries involves
the operation of a chain of Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong,
the details of which are set out in note 5 to the financial
statement. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activity during the year.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income on page 37.

The state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs as at 31
December 2009 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position on page 38 and the Statement of Financial
Position on page 40, respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years
is set out on page 108.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009
are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year,
together with reasons thereof, and of the Company’s share
options, are set out in note 29 and note 30 to the financial
statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the Laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the statements of changes in equity on
pages 41 to 42.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2009, the Company had no reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:
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At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 18 December 2009)

Mr. Chan Shi Yung

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Liu Baohe (appointed on 2 October 2009)

Mr. Wang Ligang (appointed on 18 December 2009)

Ms. Zheng Ke Wen (appointed on 22 December 2009)

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 2 October 2009
and resigned on 1 December 2009)

Mr. Chan Wai Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 1 October 2009)

Mr. Wang Xiang Jun (resigned on 1 October 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tik Tung (appointed on 30 December 2009)
Mr. Yin Guohui (appointed on 22 December 2009)
Ms. Zhang Wei (appointed on 24 December 2009)

Mr. Chang Kin Man (resigned on 30 December 2009)
Mr. Ip Wing Lun (resigned on 24 December 2009)

Ms. Li Yuen Yu, Alice (resigned on 22 December 2009)

Pursuant to article 86(3) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhao
Guogiang, Mr. Liu Baohe, Mr. Wang Ligang, and Ms. Zheng Ke
Wen, executive directors and Mr. Wong Tik Tung, Mr. Yin Guohui
and Ms. Zhang Wei, independent executive directors were
appointed by the Board, shall hold office only until the AGM and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to article 87(1)
and 87(2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chan Shi Yung,
executive director, will also retire at the AGM and be eligible for
re-election. Mr. Zhao Guogiang, Mr. Chan Shi Yung, Mr. Liu
Baohe, Mr. Wang Ligang, Ms. Zheng Ke Wen, Mr. Wong Tik Tung,
Mr. Yin Guohui and Ms. Zhang Wei, (together defined as “Retiring
Directors”), being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
on pages 12 to 14 of the Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company which was not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors and chief
executives and their associates has any interests in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 & 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which they are taken or deemed to have
under section 344 of the SFO), or which are required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

DIRECTORS" RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME" below, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted conditionally by the Company on 28 January 2002 and
the amendments on 2 November 2006, the Board of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible participants to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

No share option was granted during the year and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2009 and 2008.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2009, the registered and interests and short
positions in the share capital of the Company that was required
to be recorded under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Position in Shares

RARBAFR 2z ERES

Approximate
percentage in

Total number of issued Shares

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held HERTROAZ

BER#ES 5% P 5 B 10 48 BMAOBDLE

SCGC Captal Holdings Interest in controlled 190,190,000 (Note) 5.24%

Company Limited (“SSGC") corporation k2,

SSGCEAREZEMR AR AR ([SSGC)) P XEER

Note: These Shares were held by SCGC is ultimate held by Shenzhen it . ZERMEBSCGCIEA - MSCGCT A FYITAl
Capital Group Co., Ltd (“SCGCL") in which &I A RKFEA R ERE AR ([SCGCL]) &&HE - RmIImA
BELBEEEZEE holds 36.32% issued shares capital of SCGCL. REFEEEELEBRERLZEEHESCGCLY

36.32% B EATARAN ©
Save for those disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, no B EXHTIREEN R-EZAF+_A=1+—

person had registered an interest and short position in the share
capital of the Company that was required to be recorded under
Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

B YEBALTRARBRRAELC 2 EESARA
RIFFE 5 N B 5P 336 R A% -

EEREFRB RS RANEFTR

None of the Directors were interested in any business apart from FRN - BEEENEAREEEBEK ST
the Group’s business which competed or were likely to compete, ERIMERF CEBUIIN R EBESR %
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during = o
the year.
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BERERS
Details of the significant related party and connected transactions BELTRUAEEERFEALTRBEI S
of the Group under the Listing Rules are set out in note 32 to the BEINRABRMEMTI2R T :
financial statements and as below:
2009 2008
=F I I LT
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 35 &B3E X ff it FHET T8 7T
Rental expenses paid to related companies  [AIBIE QB XNEE X (i) — 400
Notes: Wtat
() The rental expenses were paid to Hon Po Investment Limited of () HeRIDZINTFTEBRERRAR - ZARA

which directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company have a
beneficial interest. The rental expenses were based on the tenancy
agreement signed with the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2008, this related party transaction also constitutes
connected party transactions as defined under the Listing Rules.

ARRETHER TZi%%ﬁE’\% ° M®
P HRIBEAEEMAHT 2 MEGHAE
E-TENF+_A=+—HILFE  REHE
ALTZ BB ETRANEREZHEALRZS -
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With respect to the ongoing connected transactions entered into
by the Group as set out in note 32 to the financial statements,
the Stock Exchange, on application by the Company, granted
the Company a waiver from strict compliance with the connected
transaction requirements as set out in the Listing Rules. In the
opinion of the independent non-executive directors, the ongoing
connected transactions were:

1. entered into by the Company in the ordinary and usual
course of its business;

2. conducted either (i) on normal commercial terms (which
expression will be applied by reference to transactions of a
similar nature and to be made by similar entities) or (ii) where
there is no available comparison, on terms that are fair and
reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are
concerned; and

3. entered into either (i) in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions, or (ii) where there
are no such agreements, on terms no less favourable than
those available to or from independent third parties.

Save for the transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements, there were no other transactions which require to
be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year.

BANK BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES

The Group had no outstanding bank borrowings as at
31 December 2009 and 2008

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

SIS RR T FE 32T R AR & @Fﬁﬂﬁz%%ﬁ %

ERS  AREE MR P MR E T
Z’X _J*IE%G% ﬂ//\}itu S meﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BRGIRTE - BUFPTESTRRFEETZ

BER 5 EE T OGN

1. HARARBEBER-REBBEPFTL

2. ZAR()-REARGREEFERD2RARA
BT EIRIMEE XX 5 MR AR) (i) a0 & m] 44

tEF% HIJ/,\? T$ jHXﬁﬁﬁDﬁ :FI/ZI\
B2 IRFETT K

3. ANWRBEEZZIRSHZHHGR - ()M
BZEhE  ARTENGETEYE=52
RFRETSL »

RIS G I 3067 418 2 R 991 - S5
b2 5 AR D RAIARE R 5 2 5 A e
W -

BE HEIBEEQRAES

FR - ARFRAEAHBARBREHRE  BE
K EARRARE LTES -
RITEERBITAME

R-ZZBZNFR-_ZFZNF+_A=1t—H" K
B E R OREE ZIRITEE -

RERREHE

EREXGEERREBZABENIBREME
37 ¢
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2009.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to
27 of this Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of
Conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors of the
Company. All Directors have confirmed following specific enquiry
by the Company that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
Group established an Audit Committee comprises of three
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Group.

AUDITOR
The financial statement have been audited by BDO Limited who

will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong
26 April 2010
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IBDO

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FERRARIZRERDR)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of China Energy
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 37 to 107, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2009, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity, and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Tel : +852 2541 5041
Fax : +852 2815 2239

{EH : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25" Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
T : +852 2541 5041 ERTHEPR

KR L2518
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(REASHSTMKLZBERA])
2RERE

AZBEEEZ TN EI7EEFE 1075+ LR
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On
Practising Certificate number P02410

Hong Kong, 26 April 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

0 2 R e R

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009

HE_TTNE+_A=+—AILFE

2009 2008
—EEAF —ET)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt it FET FEL
CONTINUING OPERATION BEREXER
Turnover EER 6 161,840 242,059
Other income HAth g A 6 9,232 6,154
Cost of inventories consumed LB E KA 7 (50,522) (69,544)
Staff costs BIXA 7 (60,546) (136,282)
Operating lease rentals KEHER S 7 (24,721) (32,316)
Depreciation of property, Wz - RE KRB
plant and equipment ZiTE 7 (2,961) (6,384)
Fuel costs and utility expenses MmE RKEE (12,973) (20,585)
Fair value loss of financial assets BIEEBEZSREE
held for trading Z NV EBEEBE 7 (144) (9,060)
Provision for impairment of AR EF] &
refundable deposits (B 25 (10,363) (5,181)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A Rz W 33 2,384 —
Other operating expenses H A& (23,176) (56,654)
Finance costs B 5 R AN 8 — (12)
Loss before taxation B %4 A BT 18 (11,950) (87,805)
Taxation F18 9 — _
Loss for the year from continuing TFEERBEREXK2
operation e (11,950) (87,805)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION EAREREEL
Loss for the year from discontinued REE DRI FT
operation Z B8 15 — (269,024)
Loss for the year and total TEEFBER
comprehensive income for the year AEEZHEURFZAE (11,950) (356,829)
Loss attributable to: NHIEIEEE
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ RN (11,950) (356,829)
Minority interests DE IR RS _ -
(11,950) (356,829)
Total comprehensive income THELGEZEKRAE :
attributable to: N
Owners of the Company RKABIER A (11,950) (356,829)
Minority interests DER R — —
(11,950) (356,829)
Loss per share FREE 12
From continuing and discontinued REFELERBRIELE
operations 7%
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EAR K B (0.37) (11.80)
From continuing operation REFFBLE T
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — HEAR K B (0.37) (2.90)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A W B55IR DL A

At 31 December 2009
R-EFEANF+=—FA=+—H

2009 2008
—EERE —EENEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
k23 FET FAEIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e S 16 2,618 15,482
Rental deposits and other deposits Heke RHEMET2 18 5,393 10,433
Deposits for acquisition Wk 2 2] & 19 445,000 =
453,011 25,915
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 4,707 6,419
Trade receivables JiE U BR SR 23 369 961
Financial assets held for trading BFEEEZERMEE 24 49,405 29,481
Other receivables, deposits and EEYRIE  fTe Kk
prepayments TERT IR 25 112,973 101,052
Loan receivables eI E R 26 57,100 57,000
Amounts due from related companies JE Uk BEsE N B FR I8 28(a) 2,709 —
Tax recoverable AT U B 7518 429 327
Cash and cash at banks B& KEBITER 11,476 269,662
239,168 464,902
Total assets EEH#AE 692,179 490,817
Equity s
Share capital f& s 29 181,434 151,195
Reserves {1 457,306 269,528
Attributable to owners of the Company AR &# A A EG#E 638,740 420,723
Minority interests DHAR R R A 753 753
Total equity EREE 639,493 421,476
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At 31 December 2009
R-EFEANF+=—FA=+—H

2009 2008
—EZTAF ZZTENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FHETT FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BT IE & F 21 53 130
Provision for long service payments REIRE S EE 184 812
237 942
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade payables FE 1 BR 3R 27 7,696 13,674
Other payables and accruals B & 15 508 R FEET RUR 27 27,055 28,625
Amount due to a related company JE 1 BE 38 R R FRIA 28(b) 17,698 26,100
52,449 68,399
Total liabilities aE#E 52,686 69,341
Total equity and liabilities EaRkBEEHEE 692,179 490,817
Net current assets REBEEFE 186,719 396,503
Total assets less current liabilities EELAERRBER 639,730 422,418
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EEEgR T ZFONA-TRBEREET
by the board of directors on 26 April 2010. BREMHmE -
Zhao Guogqgiang Chui Kwong Kau
Director Director
EFE EFE

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. BE BT 2 B 5T ek S S R 2 AR AR 1D ©
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2009
R-EFEANF+=—FA=+—H

2009 2008
—EERE —EENEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
k23 FET FAEIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B R R 2 s 17 841 816
Deposits for acquisition WhE Z 5] & 19 445,000 —
445,841 816
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets held for trading RHIEEEZEMEE 24 49,405 29,481
Other receivables, deposits and H A fE Y 5RI8
prepayments & RIENREIE 25 111,039 98,704
Loan receivables FE W E 26 57,100 57,000
Cash and cash at banks B& RIBITER 3,717 254,204
221,261 439,389
Total assets EEH#AE 667,102 440,205
Equity s
Share capital f& 7 29 181,434 151,195
Reserves {1 470,602 283,350
Total equity EnEE 652,036 434,545
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals H fth & 4 SR8 R FERT IR 27 15,066 5,660
Total liabilities EE%E 15,066 5,660
Total equity and liabilities EmREEHAE 667,102 440,205
Net current assets REBEEFE 206,195 433,729
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAEBERRBAER 652,036 434,545

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 26 April 2010.

Zhao Guogiang
i B 58
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

40

Chui Kwong Kau

BEXER
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
HE-—FTAFI-A=+—ALFE

Group
A
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARHEAEL
Share
Issued Contributed Share option Accumulated Minority Total
capital surplus premium reserve losses Total interests equity
BRfT B4 BhRE HY
BE  RABH  ROEE e  RiAEE Mt RRER  ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
Note (i) Note (i) Note (i)
fitet() fit &) Fitt()
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZZZE\$-A-H
a3 151,195 30,004 653,418 69,176 (185,729) 718,064 753 718,817
Total comprehensive income FEE2ENRDE
for the year - — - — (356,829) (356,829) - (356,829)
Recognition of equity-settled BREREEURMIH
share-based payment expenses LHBRX (H#30)
(Note 30) — — — 59,488 — 59,488 — 59,488
Transfer upon lapse and cancellation 7 BERk#Z &%
of share options Hot A A = = = (128,664) 128,664 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2008 RZEENE
+-A=t-BzE&s 151,195 30,004 653,418 — (413,894) 420,723 753 421,476
Total comprehensive income FEE2ENREE
for the year — — — — (11,950) (11,950) — (11,950)
Issued of share capital (Note 29) 4TI (Hfz£29) 30,239 — 199,728 — — 229,967 — 229,967
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZZEZNE
TZA=t—Rz&H 181,434 30,004 853,146 — (425,844) 638,740 753 639,493
(i) Natures of reserves are explained in the notes stated in the () REZHEEREAARERZSHRAEAMTPHH
statement of changes in equity of Company. B e

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. BEFT 2 M 5T Ak S I IS R 2 AR ER 1D o
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
RE_FENF+_A=+—AIFE

Company
A E
Share
Issued  Contributed Share option Accumulated
capital surplus premium reserve losses Total
BRT BA R
R RAE RDEE 1] 2 BR “eE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAET FAET FAET FAT
Note (a) Note (b) Note (c)
fiit(a) Fiit(b) Firit(c)
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZTZNE—FA—H
2B 151,195 91,349 653,418 69,176 (234,971) 730,167
Total comprehensive income AEER2EREEE
for the year — — — — (355,110) (355,110)
Recognition of equity-settled BREREEUARD IR
share-based payment expenses ZHRBRX (f:£30)
(Note 30) — — — 59,488 — 59,488
Lapse and cancellation SRR A It 8
of share options — — — (128,664) 128,664 —
Balance at 31 December 2008 RZZEENF
+-A=t+—Bz&H 151,195 91,349 653,418 — (461,417) 434,545
Total comprehensive income AEEREREEE
for the year — — — — (12,476) (12,476)
Issue of share capital (Note 29) BT (BF7£29) 30,239 — 199,728 — = 229,967
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZEZNF
TZA=T—R2&H 181,434 91,349 853,146 — (473,893) 652,036

(@) The contributed surplus represents the difference between (a) EBEABRABHBRIIBE_TE-_F—HA+t H

the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued in ZE%@E%HE% : %DA%T%W%QETZE%{T
N 7= =R (/ TE/\ 5

exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries HZ%%Z;%%%Q@?EZETE&W%A Al

and the value of the underlying assets of the subsidiaries AR -

pursuant to the Group Reorganisation on 17 January 2002.

(b) Unde.r the Comparlnes. Layv of the Cayman Islands, the share b) REHSREATEZEE  BOREEL
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the ET ISR TR DE AR TS E o IR %%(E
Company under certain circumstances. It represents the EHEAATBRTRMOEEZ ShXE o
excess of the nominal value of shares issued by the
Company.

© (O VABR(A S 2 BROE $5 5 Y 3 (P B3 LA P

The share-based payment represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to directors, employees and consultants of the
Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payment set out in note
3(a).

MM KRN GABRER - HTAK
NEIER - EENMER 2 BERIEFARITE
BREREHE ZAFERE-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e Bl e R

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
RE_FENF+_A=+—AIFE

2009 2008
—EETNF —ZEENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
K aE FHETT FAET
Cash flows from operating activities KEXBHLSHKE
Loss before taxation MR AR B
From continuing operation REFELEFE (11,950) (87,805)
From discontinued operation KEERIEREET — (269,024)
(11,950) (356,829)
Adjustments for: HATIER (EHFAE :
Interest expenses MEXZH — 1,351
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERZBZITE
equipment 2,961 9,622
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEKEE
plant and equipment 2z (Wzs) /E1E (70) 1,047
Share-based payment expenses LARR 7 32~ 2 SR8 7 2 — 59,488
Interest income FEWA (8,928) (5,940)
Fair value gain of financial assets held ~ FH{EEBE 2 SRt & E
for trading Z A EERE 144 9,060
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Z (W) BHiE 33 (2,384) 238,815
Provision/(reversal) for long service RERE S
payments B (BmE) 18 (88)
Provision for impairment of refundable  A[:E[El 5] & BB B
deposit 10,363 5,181
Operating cash flows before working & A & 38 & 7~ 8 &) fif 15 &
capital changes HERE (9,846) (38,293)
Decrease in inventories FERD 699 281
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables  FEUSBE ZUR 4> (3% 40) 260 (10,261)
Increase in financial assets held BIEEBZSRIEE
for trading N (20,068) (1,519)
Increase in other receivables, deposits ~ H {th & W FITH -
and prepayments a1 R FE FRIEEE N (53,613) (13,496)
Increase in amounts due from related JE Ui 88 38 X R) SRIE L AN
companies (2,709) —
Increase in trade payables JE 1 BR ZRIE 0 1,069 40,497
Increase/(decrease) in other payables b &1 508 R FEFT RUR 6,671 (54,194)
and accruals =, Gl
Decrease in amount due to a related JE 1 BE & A R FRIA
company oA (7,197) (7,191)
Cash used in operations REXKMBRAZES (84,734) (84,176)
Interest paid B A — (1,638)
Interest received 2 IA A 194 4,482
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHBEBFEH (429) (327)
Net cash used in operating activities &EZ XK AE S FHE (84,969) (81,659)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
RE_FENF+_A=+—AIFE

2009 2008
—EZTAF ZZTENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FHETT FET
Cash flows from investing activities REXBHEELHKE
Acquisition of property, plant and WHEM%E - BB
equipment B (174) (2,514)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal HEMBARIESE
of subsidiaries ZHBIRAFEHE 33 3,012 19,645
Net cash inflow from deferred HERRIEEEEBEE
consideration arising from disposal ZIEERAE
of discontinued operations ZBREMANFE 38,743 —
Deposits paid for the proposed acquisition 7% W = 5] & 19 (445,000) —
Inception of loans receivables EEEKER (19,209) (57,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - W5
plant and equipment K& 1S 50R 335 —
Repayment of loans receivables BERKRER 19,109 —
Net cash used in investing activities REXKFTEAHELFHE (403,184) (39,869)
Financing activities & E R
Issue of new shares, net of expenses BITE  HBRFEX 29 229,967 —
Repayment of bank loans BERETEXR — (10,892)
Increase of bank loans SRITE FRIE N — 31,569
Net cash generated from financing BEFEAEERSFHE
activities 229,967 20,677
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR & M ZE[FIH €M F5E (258,186) (100,851)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzRE
beginning of year RERES 269,662 370,513
Cash and cash equivalents at end FHRZBESRERRE
of year, comprising cash and BERASRBITES
bank balances 11,476 269,662

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

BERY Z MY FE R T M R 2 AR D -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
HE-—FTAFI-A=+—ALFE

1.

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 4 April 2001
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The shares
of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) with effect from 18 February 2002.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries involve
the operation of a chain of Chinese restaurants in Hong
Kong. The development of natural gas business in Macau
was discontinued in the prior year.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) is Hong
Kong dollars. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has adopted the following new/revised HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") that are effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008,
except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 that
is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009
relation to the amendment to paragraph
80 of HKAS 39

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 32 and 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
(Amendments) Controlled Entity or Associate
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HEREE

ARAAR-_ZEE—FNANBREHSES
NEERHESHEEMER L ASHREERA
Al e ARBRIRMHBE —_ET_F A+ /\HEE
REBBAERZARAR ([BRAT]) ER
Erre

ARAR 2 T BEBRITEER - AATHE
RAIZEBFRGRNEAZEEHT B
B BRI CBERARREBEREFRLL
s

= ©

AARREMBRR (R AREE]) 28
EBRAT - IRAMBERRAETES

RANE BRI RSN (FEHS
g )
AEEDRATIHEBGHMAE ([FH
SEAIAE]) BN AN BB ER
RS ET BB M IS mE 2R o

BENBREER (BTA) —BENERHAEMERS
BA| 7B - ERBHE
FEERFOHR 2R
RZEENELA—HY
L ERB EEHRER
o

ERUBREER (BITR) ZEENERARBNERE
BRI 2o BABRASH
£ %395 Z808k 2 7]

BBGHENSIR (BB BERRZE7

BBGIHEA B35 (KB BERA

BEREHENERRRIF  AALZERIA

(CHES) RN BEREAELZER
BB RELERE 15 RHBAR - ARAHEES
REBGERETR BENRZRERA

SCHEY

ERMBREENEE  BRGME RS
SCHEY

ERMBREENETR  NEAMESRIAZERE
SCHEY

ERMBHREENRSE  2ELW
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RE_FENF+_A=+—AIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 and HKAS 39 Embedded derivatives

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 16

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 18

The adoption of the above new/revised HKFRSs had no
material effect on the reported results or financial position
of the Group for both the current and prior reporting
periods. Certain presentational change have been made as
the result of adopting HKAS 1 (Revised). Comparative
figures have been restated or included in these financial
statements in order to achieve a consistent presentation.
The statements of financial position, previously known as
balance sheets, at the beginning of the year of 2008 have
not been presented as there were no changes to the
originally published statements.

HKFRS 8 supersedes HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”, and
requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that
are reqularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-
makers in order to allocate resources to the segment and
to assess its performance. As the business segments
reported by the Group in accordance with the requirements
of HKAS 14 are the same as the operating segments
provided to chief operating decision-makers as required by
HKFRS 8, there are no changes to the operating segments
and the results of operating segments on the adoption of
HKFRS 8.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures relating
to fair value measurement for financial instruments that
are measured at fair value and liquidity risk of financial
liabilities. A three-level fair value hierarchy has been
introduced to categorise the fair value measurements
according to the degree they are based on observable
market data. The Group has not provided comparative
information for the expanded disclosures in accordance with
the transitional provision.

2.

RMEEVBRELN (FEBUK

HEEA] @)

B (ARHERE2E RRATETIR
ZEE) -2EEW
REB G ERE395
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B5 (BRHERE2E R R
ZEE)-REZ13%

B5 (BRHERE2E BHERERZ

ZEE)-REZ15%
Bk BRyBRE2E

ZEE)-REZ16%
Bk BRyBRE2E

ZEE)-REZ18%
BN EFEE] e BB IS RS E R
AEBRAFEHEERBEREHBZES
WMEBIT AN EERNZE - HEEERN
BB EAE 1R (KIER]) BEE T 275
FRZEBERIN o LEEFTE FESKETA
ZEMBME - NEB—BRZ2AR - =
TENFFEN2HGEHKRAEX (ZRITBAEE
EEER)WEZY - RN ERED FIZ
R EEE) o

HRRNEHLREFE

BREPEE

BEMBIRELERIESHEIMAE B ST ER
FVERIDEE2R] - BRUAETBZLERRE
EREBERDEMKBAN G L - EHENA
AAKE RSN 2 ARBEERSRD 2E
DEZEE - IR ARERBE LG ER
PR REERZIFEH D BDERRRE B
BHRELANESRARTEMNER L ERRE
Rz EEDR 2 Bt - @B EHRE
RV EARNBEMHERELERIESIRM
e -

BB R R RIETIR 2 5 AT A 1 BB
RATVEEEZ BT A AT HEENY
REBMAEZRYE BRI HE - RE3
AZBATEEEL  LARERENTHR
SRR 2 IR AT B BRI -
IRIBIEAE X - A EL AT 002 B
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMNBEBMBREEL (BBHK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") HEEAD @)
(Continued)
The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant %I F] B BN &= B S S AR R 2 BT R] SARIERT
to the Group’s operations, have been issued but are not BT BHRELERNEEMHERRER - AR
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group: A ARIEAN R B IR RN
HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of BEMBRERA(ETR) FRAMBRSENSH
Improvements to HKFRSs ' ZBIR  (EREBHK
\ \ BERA 2o
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 2 ERMBRSEN (BIA) FAMBREEN
\ (ZFTNE) 2
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Group Cash-settled EANBREERNFLR B RER 2 (- 5E
Share-based Payment Transactions * TR BeBENRO RN 2R 5
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial BRI ENFR RARBUBBRE
Statements ' (&3) \
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations ' %?Eﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ”%ﬁﬁ £REH
B85
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners ' BA (I‘f’%ﬁ?ﬁ‘%i&%%?}% AEEADRFEREEE
ZE8)-2BETH
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Bk (AR ERERE MRATEEHERE B
Instruments * 288)-2BF19%
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures ® %iﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘@mﬁ BERRES
Bi&3]
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ¢ AN BREENEIR SHIAS
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July g R-ZEThF+A—BEBFABZFEH
2009 ] A 2
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2 RZZENFtA—HBER=_Z—ZTF—H—
2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate. H (z&@EEmE) s HERG 2 FERMAE
3
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RZE—TF—-F—HxHERB 2 FEH
2010 X
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July g RZE—TF+ A A EERBZFELH
2010 e A &K
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g R_E——F—A—BAxHEEFABZFEH
2011 il £
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 R-ZT—=F— A —HHEFIR 2 FEH
2013 X

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the FLANE S B 75 e 22 I 8 358 (KB RT) Rl B
Company’s accounting for business combinations for which FEREEWERAA T —ZFTF—H—H
the acquisition dates are on or after 1 January 2010. HKAS FHEEBEH SRR - BEGTER
27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for F2759% (BUER]) B Em BAE B R B
changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary. NRIZBEEEERES C A RERE - A
Changes in the company’s ownership interest that do not SETEEBRERNMBRARIEHIE 2 ES
result in loss of control of the subsidiary will be accounted P HIERERS -

for as equity transactions.

The company is in the process of making an assessment of RNR B RS EAFET ST B AN
the potential impact of other new/revised HKFRSs and the WELR 2 EETE  BEEZANARL - EF
directors so far concluded that the application of the other RBEREMIG] USR] BB SR E %
new/revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the B~ a E AR E 2 8 R MG EKE
results and the financial position of the Group. AR E o
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified for the revaluation of trading securities
which are carried at fair value.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired and disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

All intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
enterprises are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment on
the asset transferred.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

3.

FE

(a)

(b)

(c)
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets excluding goodwill
of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately
from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests
consist of the amount of those interests at the date
of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in
excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of
the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised.

3.

FE

(c)

(d)
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities in which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies,
so as to obtain benefits from their activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary and
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the subsidiary and recognised at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset
at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated are tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to other asset of the
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On the disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.

3.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, rental or administrative purposes, or for
purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
assets, other than properties under construction, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
principal estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 - 6 years or over the term

of the lease; if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 4 - 8 years
Plant and equipment 10 - 25 years
Motor vehicles 6 - 8 years

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

3.

(9)
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

As lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy
on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals recognised
as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

()

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
RE_FENF+_A=+—AIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()]

(k)

Inventories

Inventories, representing food and beverages, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
after making due allowance for any obsolete or slow-
moving items. Cost, calculated on a first-in, first-out
basis, comprises all costs of purchases, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and cost necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the investment within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, are initially measured at
fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. These
financial assets are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss where the financial asset
is either held for trading or it is designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables
that have fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market are classified
as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.
Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there
is objective evidence that as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been
impacted.

For equity securities, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; or

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities are not reversed.

—  For trade receivables, loans receivables,
other receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
RE_FENF+_A=+—AIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

(k)

U]

Financial assets (Continued)

(v) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

Financial liabilities and equity instrument issued
by the Group

i)

ii)

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument issued
by the Group (Continued)

iii)

iv)

Other financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities as
other financial liabilities based on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings,
are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expenses over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liabilities, or where appropriate,
a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability only

when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the liability expire.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks, and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
RE_FENF+_A=+—AIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

(n) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

(i)

(ii)

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expenses that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profits, and is accounted
for using the liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of any deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESEE®)
(n) Taxation (Continued) (n) ®iE (&)

(ii) Deferred tax (Continued) (i) EEFHE ()

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
RE_FENF+_A=+—AIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the functional currency
of the Company.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements of the individual
entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise except for:

— exchange differences which relate to assets
under construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on foreign currency borrowings;

— exchange differences on transactions entered
into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks; and

— exchange differences on non-monetary items
carried at fair value in respect of which gains or
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are expressed in Hong Kong dollars
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during the
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in translation reserve within
equity. Exchange differences recognised in profit or
loss of Group entities’ individual financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items that
form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign
operations are reclassified to the translation reserve.
Such translation differences are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.

Employees’ benefits
i) Short term benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of reporting period.

3.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Employees’ benefits (Continued)

ii)

iif)

Employment Ordinance long service
payments

Certain employees of the Group have completed
the required number of years of service under
the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for long
service payments upon termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make
such payments where the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the
Employment Ordinance.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
of Hong Kong for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income as
they become payable in accordance with rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to
the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

3.

FESTTEE @)
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ii)
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESEE®)

(q) Employees’ benefits (Continued) (q) EEEA (E)

iv) Share-based payments iv) HURGXMNZ5HE

66

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of
the share options is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest.
The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
over the remaining vesting period, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve.

The policy described above is applied to all share
options that were granted after 7 November
2002 and amendments on 2 November 2006
that vested after 1 January 2005. No amount
has been recognised in the financial statements
in respect of other equity-settled share-based
payment transactions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with other parties are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where
the fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in
which case they are measured at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted, measured at
the date the Group entity obtains the goods or
the counterparty renders the service.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transaction, a liability equal to the portion of
the goods or services received is recognised at
the current fair value determined at the end of
each reporting period.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

To the extent that variable rate borrowings are used
to finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an
effective cash flows hedge of interest rate risk, the
effective portion of the derivative is deferred in equity
and released to profit or loss when the qualifying asset
impacts profit or loss. To the extent that fixed rate
borrowings are used to finance a qualifying asset and
are hedged in an effective fair value hedge of interest
rate risk, the capitalised borrowing costs reflect the
hedged interest rate.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economics benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
as follows:

(i)  Revenue from sales of natural gas is recognised
when the Group has delivered natural gas to
customers.

(i)  Revenue from restaurant operations is
recognised when catering services are provided
to customers.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) Interest income is recognised on a time-
apportioned basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the interest
rates applicable.

(iv) Operating lease rental income is recognised on
a straight line basis over the lease periods

(v)  Sundry income is recognised when the related
services have been rendered.

Related parties

Two parties are considered to be related if one party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party
or exercise significant influence over the other party
in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals (being members
of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or
other entities and include entities which are under
the significant influence of related parties of the
Group where those parties are individuals, and post-
employment benefit plans which are for the benefit
of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
board of directors of the Company, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, which are based on the
Group’s business line of operations.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to that segment. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except
to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group enterprises within a
single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on
similar terms as those available to other external
parties. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment assets
(both tangible and intangible) that are expected to
be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,
deposits, corporate and financing expenses and
minority interests.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the critical judgements that the Directors
have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
of the amounts recognised in financial statements.

()

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges of its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of loan receivables

The Group makes impairment provision for receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
balance. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balance may not be collectible. The identification of
impaired receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of receivables and provision for
impaired receivables in the year in which such estimate
has been changed. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment
may be required.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Business segments

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segment”. HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to
be identified on the basis of internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker in order to
allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance. It replaces the requirements under HKAS
14 to determine primary (business) and secondary
(geographical) reporting segments of the Group. In
accordance with the Group’s internal organisation and
reporting structure, the operating segments are based
on nature of business.

The Group has one reportable segment in 31
December 2009 (2008: two), and the operation of
natural gas business segment was discontinued in last
year. The segments are managed separately as each
business offers different products and services and
requires different business strategies. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the
Group's reportable segments:

(i)  Chinese restaurants (continuing operation) —
operating a chain of Chinese restaurants

(i) Natural gas business (discontinued operation)
— sourcing, storage, processing, transmission
and sale of natural gas
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

5.

DEER (@)

Business segments (Continued) (a) EXBLIB(E)
The following tables present information regarding THREVEEFRDBHBYKE B F
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities for each NEE - EERBEZER :
reportable segment:
Continuing operation Discontinued operation Consolidated
BELEER BRLESEEE Ga
Chinese restaurants Natural gas business
PR RARER
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZBEENE ZEI)F ZBENE ZEI)F ZEEhE “EI)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FiET TEx FiET TEx TiEx
Revenue iz 161,840 242,059 - 97,166 161,840 339,225
Segment results PEEE (1,509) 53 - (267,956) (1,509) (267,903)
Gain on disposal of restaurants ekt ol 6 2,384 — - — 2,384 =
Unallocated expenses RAERE (21,753) (93,515)
Interest income FME WA 8,928 5,940
Interest expenses MERX - (1,351)
Loss for the year TEEER (11,950) (356,829)
Assets EE
Segment assets PHEE 24,571 49,764 - — 24,571 49,764
Unallocated assets RAORAE 667,608 441,053
692,179 490,817
Liabilities =
Segment liabilities HEHEE (37,620) (63,681) - — (37,620) (63,681)
Unallocated liabilities AREERE (15,066) (5,660)
(52,686) (69,341)
Other segment information HitAHER
Capital expenditure BXRX 174 2,029 - 760 174 2,789
Unallocated capital expenditure KA BEART - 12
174 2,801
Depreciation of property, n% KRR
plant and equipment REFE 2,836 6,145 - 3,238 2,836 9,383
Unallocated depreciation of n% - BERRE
property, plant and equipment LARPEHE 125 239
2,961 9,622
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZEER (@)
(b) Geographical information/major customers (b) HEER FEEF
Carrying amount of
Revenue segment non-current assets
g ARERDEEREE
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EThE “EENE “EThE “EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FE FET FER FAET
Continuing operation: HELEET
— Hong Kong — BB 161,840 242,059 453,011 25,915
Discontinued operation: REJIRE—ES
— Macau — 2 — 97,166 — —
161,840 339,225 453,011 25,915
For the year of 2009 and 2008, the revenue from the RZEZNFRZZENF  FHEL
Group’s largest customer in the continuing operation EEBRREAEERAT P 2 W&
amounted to less than 10% of the Group’s total EAEEBERKETZE10% °
revenue.
6. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME 6. EZXEHRHAMUBA

Turnover which is also revenue, is analysed below. All
significant intra-group transactions have been eliminated

LERBENERA - RIXDM - AEEXRZ
SENAERZHEERBERE VB RAREFL

in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 8 o
Continuing operation Discontinued operation Consolidated
BERELE BRIEBELHK 28
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE ZZEN\E  ZEBAfE ST\ ZEBEENFE  C—2T)\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FiEr TEn FiEr TEn FiEr
Turnover EXE
Sales of natural gas KEHEXAR - — - 97,166 - 97,166
Sales of food and beverages from AR RBEEH
Chinese restaurants operation HERRRAH 161,840 242,059 - = 161,840 242,059
161,840 242,059 - 97,166 161,840 339,225
Other income 2t A
Bank interest income RITFIE]MA 6 4211 - 271 6 4,482
Interest income from other loans ~ EMEZZFIE A 8,922 1,458 - = 8,922 1,458
Rental income HEHA 141 285 - = 141 285
Sundry income HEWA 163 200 - = 163 200
9,232 6,154 - 271 9,232 6,425
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7.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7. BRBIAIEE
Continuing operation Discontinued operation Consolidated
BRELSEER BALREERK &&
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
CEEAE ZZEN\E ZEEAE ZTTN\§  CEEAE  Z3EN\%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAT TEn FhT TEn FAT
Loss from operations is arrived st~ BAFECHR/ GHA)
after charging/(crediting):
Fair value loss of financial assets BEEEZSREEYL
held for trading ATEEFE 144 9,060 - = 144 9,060
Auditor's remuneration wEm#e 580 580 - — 580 580
(Gain)loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE  HER&EZ
plant and equipment (k%) /Bt (70) 1,047 - = (70) 1,047
Cost of inventories consumed BEREENA 50,522 69,544 - 86,016 50,522 155,560
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - BERREZIE
equipment 2,961 6,384 - 3,238 2,961 9,622
Exchange loss, net EXEE 8 - — - 760 - 760
Staff cost (including directors’ BIMA
remuneration): (PEESHE)
— Wages and salaries and other ~ — TERF & REMEF
benefits 58,196 87,880 — 7,806 58,196 95,686
— Share-based payments to —DBROEATES FE
directors - 44,950 - — - 44,950
— Pension fund contributions — Rk HEHR 2332 3,540 - - 2,332 3,540
— Provision/(reversal) of long —RORBLEE/ (BR)
service payment provision 18 (88) - — 18 (88)
60,546 136,282 — 7,806 60,546 144,088
Operating lease payment on lease ~ HEWF 2 BERNFH
premises
— Related companies —BELA 3,680 3,400 - — 3,680 3,400
— Third parties —Z=7 21,041 28916 - 373 21,041 29,289
24,121 32,316 - 373 24,121 32,689
Share-hased payments to PR S TEEZ7E
consultants (Note 30) (Firz£30) - 14,538 - - - 14,538
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HBHA
Continuing operation Discontinued operation Consolidated
FELEEH BALEEER g8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

“REAE CTENF CREAE CTENF CRRAE CTE)R
HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
FERL TAT FER TAT FER TAT

Interest on bank loans wholly BEREENZHEE
repayable within five years LBITERZHE - 12 - 1,626 - 1,638
Less: amount capitalised into B BERMAE
construction in progress BEIBZ8H - — - (287) - (287)
- 12 - 1,339 - 1,351
The borrowing costs have been capitalised at the rates of HE-_ZZN\F+-A=T—HBILEFE &
2.5% to 4% per annum for the year ended 31 December ERANRFER2SEEABRERER -

2008.
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0.

TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had tax losses brought forward to set off the

assessable profit for the year (2008: Nil).

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation of the Group (continuing operation and
discontinued operation) per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the accounting

loss as follows:

9. BiE

R
SFELE

5) HERIA T

BRELATEE (4

R AR B A AR B IR E R H A FE R
g A - I B EE RIS HAE L BE (=
TENEFE  8E) -

AERHRANBAKEFA2AKRRAZ
EBRERIERER

AEEHARESABRYERENT

2009 2008
—EThE “—ZTTN\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Loss before taxation R %4 Al 5 98
— Continuing operation — BEREER (11,950) (87,805)
— Discontinued operation — BRI ETE — (269,024)
(11,950) (356,829)
Effect of tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate REBFNGEHHE16.5%
of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) —EZNF : 16.5%)
AEREINETE (1,972) (58,877)
Tax effect of income not taxable for taxation JEREFIUL A 2 Fi 7552 &
purposes (1,107) (2,093)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for NAIMBRAZ 2RI E
taxation purposes 2,222 58,132
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FANIBEEE MG E (107) (606)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZABATIAEE
recognised IS 964 3,444

Taxation for the year for continuing
and discontinued operations

FERERERIERERK

ZAEE IR
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10.

11.

12.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The loss attributable to owners of the Company includes a
loss of HK$11,039,000 (2008: loss of HK$85,261,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: Nil), nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of reporting period. (2008: Nil)

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations attributable to the ordinary
equity holders of the Company is based on the following
data.

10.

11.

12.

RARERARIEEE

EARREHE—ZETNF+=-_A=+—H1
FEZHMEREAT - ARAREA ARGEE
BIEE1E 11,039,000 L (ZFT/)\F : 5
885,261,000 7T) °

@SN

BE_TTNF+_A=+T—HILFELE
ENSEEREARE (CEZNE &) © 8
BEHRETERREARE (CFEZN
F:E) -

BRER
ARAREBREREARGHELERDK
IERERZ BREARERIVREATHIE

R



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 % %

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA ik o B ik

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
HE—ETNF+_A=1+—HIFE

12. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 12. BREE #)
2009 2008
—EZThE Z—ZZITN\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss BB
Loss for the year attributable to REFERRARERE A
equity owners of the Company FEfh 2 B8
— Continuing operation — BB EEY (11,950) (87,805)
— Discontinued operation — BRI EET — (269,024)
(11,950) (356,829)
2009 2008
—EEhE ZETNF
Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of ordinary REFEERERERZ
shares for the purpose of basic loss per share TmiRNiE T HH 3,164,739,178 3,023,900,000

For 2008, basic loss per share from the discontinued
operation was 8.90 HK cents, which was calculated based
on the loss for the year from discontinued operation
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$269,024,000 and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic loss per
share detailed above.

Diluted loss per share for both years is the same as the
basic loss per share as the Company has no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during both periods.

R-ZTT)N\F > BRIHELEEERELRE
B A8.90/8 Ll - REAR R L BIRIERAF
ANEEAFEERIEKEEEBZEERY
269,024,000 7T & it A {EFT & &I E AR
EiE 2z TR EEE -

HAARRNRERB L ELEEEHEY
B7EBE  SMEFEZSREEERK
BREAERIIER -

(7
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EEz#ME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 REESATIEHE161ENR FHHAHE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing JEEMeHT

/8

Rules is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2009

HE_ZTNF+-A=1+-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Share-based
and benefits Retirement payment 2009
Directors’ in kind scheme expenses Total
fees #¢ ZB  contribution PR3 3 43 —EENE
E=Hd REMAZ BARFEMSR ZRIERX “m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAT FAET FET
Executive directors BTEE

Chan Shi Yung (SR — 520 12 — 532
Chui Kwong Kau ERIR - 455 12 — 467
Chan Kwok Wing (v) BREIZ (v) 40 — — — 40
Chan Wai Keung (ii) BRIEaR (i) — 449 9 - 458
Liu Baohe (iv) ZIEM (v) 120 - — — 120
Wang Ligang (vii) F I8 (vi) 15 — — — 15
Wang Xiang Jun (iii) FRE (i) 198 - - - 198
Zhao Guogiang (vi) FHBER (vi) 20 — — — 20
Zheng Ke Wen (viii) BT (viii) 10 — — — 10

Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors

Chang Kin Man (ix) BRE (ix) 180 — — — 180
Ip Wing Lun (x) EXfm (x) 180 — — — 180
Li Yuen Yu, Alice (i) T () 180 — — — 180
Yin Guohui (xi) BREUHZ (xi) — — — — —
Wong Tik Tung (xiii) SERE (xiii) — — — — —
Zhang Wei (xii) SRIE (xii) — — — — —
943 1,424 33 — 2,400

(i) Ms. Li Yuen Yu, Alice resigned on 22 December 2009

(i)~ Mr. Chan Wai Keung resigned on 1 October 2009
(ili)  Mr. Wang Xiang Jun resigned on 1 October 2009
(iv)  Mr. Liu Baohe appointed on 2 October 2009

(v)  Mr. Chan Kwok Wing was appointed on 2 October 2009

and resigned on 1 December 2009

(vi)  Mr. Zhao Guogiang was appointed on 18 December 2009

(vii)  Mr. Wang Ligang was appointed on 18 December 2009

Ms. Zheng Ke Wen was appointed on 22 December 2009

(ix)  Mr. Chang Kin Man resigned on 30 December 2009
(x)  Mr. Ip Wing Lun resigned on 24 December 2009

(xi) ~ Mr. Yin Guohui was appointed on 22 December 2009

(xii)  Ms. Zhang Wei was appointed on 24 December 2009

(xiii) Mr. Wong Tik Tung was appointed on 30 December 2009

TRELTR-_ZETNFF+-_A -+ _HE
i
BREBRAEEN_ZZTAF+A—HET
TREXRER_SZTAF+A—HEE

BEMEER—"ZTAFE A -_RAERE

v) MREKEER-_EENETA_BEZRE
WYR_ZZFZNF+=—A— HEE

(vi) MEREER-"ZTTAF+-_A+/\BEZ
i

(vii)y EVRIEER_ZZNAF+_A+N\BEZ
i

(vii) BBEXNZTHR_ZTTAF+_A-+_A%
= (%

(ix) BRERLER-_ZZNF+_A=1+HEEI

(x) EXREER-_ZZAF+_A-t+EAE
i

(xi)y BREBEER-_ZTNF+_A=-—+=A%
ZE

(xi) RELZITN-_ZETHF+_A-THHER
i

(xiiiy IHREER-_ZZTNF+_A=+HEZ

£
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 13. EECME #®
Year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZTZNFT_A=1T—HIFE
Salaries,
allowances Share-based
and benefits Retirement payment 2008
Directors’ in kind scheme expenses Total
fees e o 28 contribution AR A “EEN\E
ek RENAE  BRGHEIER ZHRERX Eke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Executive directors UTEE
Chan Shi Yung BR A — 520 12 10,650 11,182
Chui Kwong Kau BRI — 455 12 10,650 11,117
Tong Seak Kan (i) EHR() — 1,365 12 3,650 5,027
Chan Wai Keung Bz — 520 7 10,650 11,177
Chang Kuo Tien (ii) of B 24 (ji) 420 — — 3,650 4,070
Wang Xiang Jun IRE 286 — — — 286
Yim Chi Keung (jii) B 54 (iil) — 603 8 — 611
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Chang Kin Man BREER 180 — — — 180
Ip Wing Lun X fm 180 — — — 180
Zhong Yuan (iv) A (iv) = = = = =
Li Yuen Yu, Alice (v) K (v) 43 — — — 43
1,109 3,463 51 39,250 43,873

(i) Mr. Tong Seak Kan resigned on 31 December 2008.
(ii) Mr. Chang Kuo Tien resigned on 12 December 2008.

(i)~ Mr. Yim Chi Keung was appointed on 2 May 2008 and
resigned on 19 December 2008.

(iv)  Mr. Zhong Yuan retired on 12 June 2008.

(v) Ms. Li Yuen Yu, Alice was appointed on 6 October 2008.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2009
(2008: Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office during the
year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).

(i) EHREER-_ZZN\F+_A=+—H#E

£ -
(i) REBEER-_ZBENFT-_A+-HE
£

(i) EBEREERZTENFRAA-_REZT -
YR—_ZZENEFE+_ATHLBET-

(ivy MHEREER-ZFZNFNA+-_BEME-

v) ZBEBWELITR-_ZTN\E+ASBAEERT-

BE_ZTNFT_A=+—BILFE #
BEERRIHERKEAHES (ZTEN
FIH) - BE_ZETNAF+_HA=1T—H
HEE  ARAHBENESE MEMMEIE
AHRE MBI INBARR R 2 2R - HAE
REECHECTENF 8 -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
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14.

15.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2008: five) was directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note
13 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2008:
Nil) individuals were as follows:

14.

REHMAL

EAfik@FMALES  —(L(ZTEN
F R RARRES - EHMN L
AI3HE - A (CTENF - ) AL
ZFBT

2009 2008

—g2BAE —TENF

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FE&T

Wages and salaries and other benefits T & & ¥ & LA K H 48 F 5,263 =
Pension fund contributions RIKSHR 35 —
5,298 —

All four employees’ emoluments are within HK$700,000
to HK$1,800,000. (2008: Nil)

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 28 October 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of Achieve Smart Finance
Limited (“Achieve Smart”) and Bright Horizon Worldwide
Inc. (“Bright Horizon"), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

The Company subsidiaries, Achieve Smart, Bright Horizon,
Macau Natural Gas Company Limited (“"MNG") and its
jointly-controlled entity, Sinosky Energy (Holdings) Company
Limited (“Sinosky”) (the “Disposal Group”) carried out all
of the Group’s business operations in natural gas business
(the “"Discontinued Operation”). The disposal was
completed on 12 December, 2008, on which date control
of operation passed to the acquirer.

15.

ZMM& 1R E 2 #H MM F700,0008 TE
1,800,000/ 7 (ZZEZE N\ 4F : ) o

CRIERERHK

R-ZEZENF+A-+NH  NEBFZ—
mE=RE HEXRRRIZEEWBAA
Achieve Smart Finance Limited ([Achieve
Smart]) % Bright Horizon Worldwide Inc.

(IBright Horizon]) °

22
n Rk

XA 7] Z [t B A Bl Achieve Smart ~ Bright
Horizon * JBFIRARBR Q7] (DRFIRA
Rl RHEKFESEESinosky Energy
(Holdings) Company Limited ([Sinosky/) ([t
EEED ATAEBRARES ([E&RIEL
EEB]) LFBHGEE HEERET
NFE+ZA+ZB5K - MEEESEITN
FRIBEBBRER °



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 % %

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA ik o B ik

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
HE-—FTAFI-A=+—ALFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

An analysis of the results of the discontinued operation

15. BRIEE&EEE (&)

FAARAEEERAER CERIEREXEBZE

included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive BAOWWAT :
income is as follows:
2008
—EZ)N\F
Notes HK$°000
K e FET
Turnover 3 6 97,166
Other income H A4 A 6 271
Cost of inventories consumed OB E KA 7 (86,016)
Staff costs 8 TR 7 (7,806)
Operating lease rentals KERERS 7 (373)
Depreciation of property, Mz - RE KRR
plant and payment ZITE 7 (3,238)
Fuel costs and utility expenses MmE MKEE (203)
Other operating expenses Hhas &k (28,671)
Finance costs B 75 A R 8 (1,339)
Loss before taxation BRELRTEE (30,209)
Taxation I8 9 =
Loss for the year before loss on disposal & B4R I & & %7
of the discontinued operation B 18 A AN F 2 B 18 (30,209)
Loss on disposal of the discontinued & B 4 [ 4% & 2 7
operation Z B8 33 (238,815)
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEREEBARFE
operation &5 18 (269,024)
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 15. BERIEREXEK (&)
The cash flows attributable to the discontinued operation ERIECEXBREREZESRENAT ¢

are as follows:

2008
—EBEZN\F
HK$000
FET

Cash inflow from: THEE Z2BREMA
Operating activities o (17,427)
Investing activities ®E X (760)
Financing activities mEEE 28,397
Net cash inflow e R AFRE 10,210
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - MERZE
The Group AEHE
Leasehold Furniture Plant and
improvements and fixtures  equipment Motor Construction
HENE i R vehicles in progress Total
%5 REE ET ] hE HBIR By
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FAL
Cost: BA
At 1 January 2008 R-EZ\E-A-H 25,165 17,806 2,738 2,121 86,417 134,247
Reclassifications ENNE — — 64,019 = (64,019) =
Additions RE 1215 1,003 257 39 287 2,801
Disposals and write off & R 38 (2,937) (6,549) — (112) — (9,598)
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBAR
(Note 33) (Hi£33) (298) (375) (67,014) (949) (22,685) (91,321)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE+ZA=F—H 23,145 11,885 = 1,099 = 36,129
Additions NE = 174 — — = 174
Disposals and write off & RHisH — — — (1,099) = (1,099)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(Note 33) (Hi£33) (12,113) (8,802) — — — (20,915)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE+ZA=F—H 11,032 3,257 = = = 14,289
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHH7E
At 1 January 2008 R-EZ\FE-A-H 12,030 10,243 = 657 = 22,930
Charge for the year (Note 7)  AEEER (Hf7#7) 3,857 2,504 2,949 312 — 9,622
Disposals and write off & R (2,680) (5,759) = (112) — (8,551)
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBAR
(Note 33) (Hi£33) (164) (78) (2,949) (163) — (3,354)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE+ZA=F—H 13,043 6,910 = 694 = 20,647
Charge for the year (Note 7)  AEEE A (Hf:t7) 1,854 967 = 140 = 2,961
Disposals and write off & R HisH — — — (834) = (834)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(Note 33) (Hi£33) (5.397) (5,706) — — — (11,103)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE+ZA=F—H 9,500 2171 = = = 11,671
Carrying amount; IREE :
At 31 December 2009 R-EENE+-A=1—H 1,532 1,086 = = = 2,618
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE+-A=F—H 10,102 4,975 — 405 — 15,482
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17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RMIB ARz =
The Company
VNN
2009 2008
—EThE —ZTTN\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LT « AR 192,400 192,400
Amounts due from subsidiaries NN B 320,607 319,145
513,007 511,545
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (512,166) (510,729)
841 816
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free FEWFI B A RRIBHEER - 28 - BEH
and in substance part of the Company’s interests in the EARRBRMBAR 2 #m AEERE
subsidiaries in the form of quasi-equity loans. HER) 2 —8H -
The Directors assessed that only a portion of the amounts ERTAE M W B A R FIETEE AT Uk
due from subsidiaries is expected to be recoverable. B o Bt - EEHREBEREE -

Consequently, a provision for impairment loss was made.
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17.

18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. RNBAR 2R (@)
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at RARBIRZZEZNF+TA=1T—HBZFEZE
31 December 2009 are as follows: MEBARFENT :
Country/
place of Issued and
Form of incorporation/ Country/ fully paid Percentage of
business establishment place of Principal share capital interests held
Name Structure HMERL/ operation activities BEf FAER
ACEL ExERYA RIBR/#%  SEEX/4¥ ITER RERRA Al
Directly  Indirectly
E# 3
China Energy Resources Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment Ordinary share 100% —
Holdings Ltd company Holding HKS1
PEERERERAA BRAT B B RABK BRRIAT 100% -
Hon Po (China) Catering Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong Sourcing Ordinary shares — 100%
Management Limited company business HK$10,000
28 (TE)HARER BRAT &k i REZH LAk — 100%
BRAH 10,0007 7T
Hon Po International Limited ~ Limited liability British Virgin Hong Kong Investment and Ordinary shares 100% —
company Islands intellectual Us$151
property holding
EREARERAT VNG EERANE i RERR ERR 100% -
RRAREER 151% 7
Ocean Grace Investments Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong Operation of a Ordinary shares HK$2 — 100%
Limited company Chinese Restaurant
EARERRAH VNG i i BemER LRR2ET - 100%
Metropolis Harbour View Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong Operation of a Ordinary shares = 100%
Chinese Cuisine Limited company Chinese restaurant ~ HK$10,000
SREBRAA ERAT &b B mamsEg Lk - 100%

RENTAL DEPOSITS AND OTHER DEPOSITS -
THE GROUP AND COMPANY

These represent rental deposits paid for the restaurants of
HK$4,505,000 (2008: HK$8,449,000) and utilities deposits
of HK$888,000 (2008: HK$1,984,000). The fair value of
rental deposits and other deposits at 31 December 2009
approximate their carrying amount.

18.

10,0007

HEREREMTE —FAEERE

N

ZER 2B BEEFT{T 24,505,000/ 7T (=
T\ : 8,449,000/8 L) 2 HEHE R
888,000/ T (ZZ =)\ : 1,984,000/ 7T)
ZARREES  c Heke REMFTER =
TENE+ A=+ BAZAFEERER
HERE °
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19. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION 19. WEB 2T &

86

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (“the Vendor”, previously known
as "Totalbuild Limited”), Mr. Wang Guoju, as guarantor for
the Vendor, China Era Energy Power Investment (Hong
Kong) Limited (“China Era Energy”), as a guarantor for the
Vendor, entered into the agreement (“the Agreement”) in
relation to proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest of
the Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited
("Totalbuild Investments”, previously known as “Zhong Guo
Nian Dai Energy Investment (Hong Kong) Limited"”).
Totalbuild Investments holds the entire issued share capital
of China Era Energy which has entered into the petroleum
contract in relation to the drilling, exploration and
exploitation of oil and/or natural gas from the site located
at North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, in the People’s
Republic of China. The Company has paid the refundable
deposits amounted to approximately HK$445,000,000 to
China Era Energy during the year, and part of which has
been utilised by China Era as working capital.

The proposed acquisition is still in progress and subject to
certain regulatory requirements. On 9 April 2010, the
Company submitted a draft copy of technical report
performed by Gaffney, Cline & Associates to the Stock
Exchange.

As a security for the refundable deposits paid, Mr. Wang
Guoju, the beneficial owner of the Vendor, has executed a
share charge over the entire issued share capital of the
Vendor in favour of the Company. Under the share charge,
in the event that the Vendor defaults in return of the
deposits, the Company is entitled to exercise all rights and
enjoy all benefits attached to the shares of the Vendor
including without limitation, the sale or disposal of the
entire issued shares of the Vendor, proceeds of which may
be applied in or towards the discharge of the obligation on
the part of the Vendor to return the deposits to the
Company in full. The Directors are of the view that the value
of the entire issued shares of the Vendor which owns the
Target Group will not be less than the amount of the
refundable deposit. The Directors believe that such security
is sufficient given the security mechanism put in place. If
the above security is insufficient to recover the full amount
of the Deposit, the Company will have to resort to obtaining
payment directly from or taking legal action against the
Vendor under the Agreement.

RZZBZENF—AZ+ZH ' &~RQF - #E
BREEREBBR AR (B - piEIHEIER
REll) EREXREERET ZBERA) K
TEFERERIRE (B8 BRAR ([HEF
REER]) ERBET 2 FBRA) ATt (5%
W) AMEREBERBRAKRERE
(BER)BRAR ([HAIKE] - B[ Zhong
Guo Nian Dai Energy Investment (Hong Kong)
Limited]) Z 2 E0RR#E - AR ERFFHEF
REREMEEITRAN - MPBEFRERE
RINAHEH  RERBRELRPEARHA
0B sE A B K 2 3 IR {1 Ab 1R 3R 2 3t B 8
R BREFERARE S IRAR - FA
ARBEMPBEFRERIMARETRL
445,000,000/ 7T * BEFREERD # %K
B2 —#MoRIELEES -

ERWEEEDEETT  WABAFHESR
TFEERER - FAEE - R —ZFNQ
AAHB - ARAREER TR B Gaffney,
Cline & Associatesf 2. 7 #fiT s & E#E A o

EREXNARE 2 ZER  TEBEXE
(BAZERBEBAN ERARRBAIRIELND
HBE BITRRAR Z B 4538 o AR AR 7 537
HEDRGREE - ARAAITEETK
DAMSZARMNEZFEE2 NG - 2
FRENENEEXHEE N 22 HEHTR
N MEMSREAARREREEETT R
ARBBBREECZREE -EFAR &
77 (BEBEBRAR) 2R BTRO ZEET
SERAIRETS &M - EFHEE - R
EREREHS - WZAEFRIZHH - R
Bt - W DR ERARRAKERT S 25
TR ARRRAERRE S B RERAK
BURRITE) o
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20. GOODWILL

20. B8

21.

The Group
TEE
HK$°000
TET

At 1 January 2008

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33)

R-FTENF—H—H

HEMB R ER M (A1a233)

284,272

(284,272)

At 31 December 2008

R-ZEZENF+_H=+—H

The goodwill was attributable to operation of natural gas
business of the Group which was disposed of during the
year of 2008. The details of disposal of the subsidiaries are
disclosed in Notes 15 and 33.

BMENDER_ZENFAHE ZAEEKRA
REBZEEMESL - BENBARIFER
BI3E15 K% 331 55 -

DEFERRED TAXATION 21. EEHRIE
(a) The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities in () REEMBHRARZELERE (BE)

(b)

the consolidated statement of financial position are
as follows:

S BBEEKIMHIAT

Accelerated

depreciation Tax
Deferred tax (assets)/ EERE (BE) allowances losses Total
liabilities arising from: BEEELR ! MEFERE HEERE B
HK$'000 HK$°'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2008 and RZBEZENF-HA—BRK
31 December 2008 —EZN\F+A=+—H 645 (515) 130
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHNB A A
(Note 33) (KtzE33) (77) = (77)
At 31 December 2009 RZZBZNF+_A=+—H 568 (515) 53
Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERELEBEEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 3(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
HK$5,591,614 (2008: HK$8,888,342) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction of the entity. The tax losses will not
expire under the current tax legislation.

RIEMFEINFE 2 SR - A5 E
I R R IBE 185,591,614 7T
(ZZZT )\ : 8,888,342/87T) HERIE
EMEEE  REARER BB
HRAER T A RER A B A ZERE
B2 RRERB T o RIEFITH
o RMBEBEB TSR -
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22. INVENTORIES 22. &8
The Group
REE
2009 2008
—EBEF2hE T N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Food and beverages Bm RE# 4,707 6,419
At 31 December 2009 and 2008, all inventories were carried RZEZENFR_ZEZENF+_A=+—
at cost. B FIEGFEEZRKATE -
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWER

Customers are usually offered a credit period ranging from
one to three months. An ageing analysis of trade receivables
of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 is as

EE—RESZEEMA—ZEZ=HMATE -
AEER-_ZETZNFR_ZTZENF+ A=
+—HZREWERRBRRE DT

follows:
The Group
REE

2009 2008
—EBEB2hE —“ZTTN\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 3 months BIERZ= =1{& A 325 917
Over 1 year —FE 44 44
369 961
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

FEW BRI (40)

1 A (5 K 38 F % A T2 R R
REAITIT :

follows:
The Group
rEE

2009 2008
—EERE —ZZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Neither past due nor impaired e HA N RORLE 325 917
More than 1 year past due B EAER A — a4 44
369 961

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group
and the Company approximate their fair values.

& Y B R I AR A A Je W R B BB S T ol
HiEf R EPIERE -

EEHERRE BRERREREES 25
BROEFFACHABRRCRCBLIEFE
Mo REBEBELR  TEEREEENZE
EMELRERE  REARGEEREIES
RERBBEHKDBAR RAEBZKE - K
SEYERAZFERFTEEAER®D -

AEERARBRBERZ REERELAF
EBEMRE -

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING 24, KEEEZEREE
The Group and the Company

AEBRAATR
2009 2008
—EBAE Z—ZET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHETT FET

Trading securities listed in Hong Kong, at REBLMCEEZRS -

market value BmiEEE 47,161 29,146
Cash balance in a security account BHEFPIRESEH 2,244 335
49,405 29,481
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND HtEWFIE « STE RFBEMNIE
PREPAYMENTS
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EBEAE —ZTZENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TET
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments E i EUFKIE « 5] & R FE KB 107,792 46,765
Refundable deposits (note (a)) Ti&@ 1 (Afat@)) 20,725 20,725
Deferred considerations (Note 33) BEERE (K75233) — 38,743
128,517 106,233
Less: Provision for impairment of B AR [EF
refundable deposit VpRIEREL ] (15,544) (5,181)
112,973 101,052
Note: Bitat -

(@ On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo, an
independence third party and Joy Even International Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group, entered into the agreement in
relation to the proposed acquisition of the 51% equity
interest in each of the target companies, Bu Tuo County
Wu Zhou Minerals Limited Liability Company (%5 #5 % .M
EEAREEAF)and Hui Li County Wan Feng Mining
Limited Liability Company (2% B LEXFREEAA)
of an aggregate consideration of RMB498 million (equivalent
of HK$516 million) (the “Agreement”). Both companies are
limited liability companies established in the PRC. The
principal activities of both companies are in the development
of mines in the PRC. A refundable deposit of HK$20,725,000
was paid (equivalent to RMB20,000,000) to Wang Jian Guo
upon signing of the agreement. On 31 July 2008, the
company executed the Deed of termination regarding the
proposed acquisitions, whereby subject to the return of the
refundable deposit, both parties shall be released and
discharged from their respective obligations under the
Agreement. As at 31 December 2009, the management has
assessed the recoverability of this refundable deposits and
a provision for impairment of HK$10,363,000 is charged to
profit or loss for the year (2008: HK$5,181,000). The carrying
amounts of the other receivables, deposits and prepayments
approximate their fair values as at 31 December 2009 and
2008.

(a)

RZZFEZTLFNA=Z+WEAE  TEEKLE
B F=7h) B BEEEER AR (KEE
ZBTE a) El vtk ([Hhakl) - RBBEH

FUWEEZEARMESRANMEEGRET
T&ﬂi&?%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁa& AIZEZ
51%[%#E - BR(E A AR498,000,00070
(#8571 516,000,000/87T) ° MEQF)HE A
RPN 2 BRAR - EBEBH BT
BIFHETES - AEEERER] BRI TE
I%iiﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁm7ﬁom%nﬁﬁ

LN ARK20,000,0007T) ° TENF
+tA=+—8" &2 Téiﬁwuiu&zﬁﬁﬁ

B2 R IERE - IR ZBREIATREF] & o
EHRRTERBRZELE - RZZTTAF
+=—A=1+—8 EBEEEGHEROE
Z A B2 - ﬁTﬁ@ﬂéZMﬁ%ﬁ
10,363,000 TLEFTAREE 2185 (=

= )\4 : 5,181,000/ 7T) ° AQYHE&
—EENF+_A=+—8  HEiREWRX

B A RENREZ FEEREATEER
HBHE -
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26. LOAN RECEIVABLES 26. EIRERK

The Group and the Company

AEBERARDT
2009 2008
—EBRE —_ZTZ)N\HF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Loan receivable - a related party (i) EWEF —@EAL () — 10,000
Loan receivable - unrelated parties (ii) FEE R —EBE AL (i) 57,100 47,000
57,100 57,000

Note:

(i) The balance represents loan to a related party (Note 32 (iii))
in the prior year, which was unsecured, interest-bearing at
1% per month and repayable within 1 year. This balance
had been fully repaid during the year.

(i) The balances represent loan receivables from independent
third parties, which was unsecured, interest-bearing at 1%
per month and repayable within 1 year. Of this amount,
HK$33.1 million (2008: HK$33 million) was loan receivable
from SMI Publishing Group Limited, a company listed on
Stock Exchange, but trading of this company’ shares was
suspended from 28 April 2005 and up to the date of this
report. The loan receivable from SMI Publishing Group
Limited is secured by a personal guarantee of a third party.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the loan receivables
were neither past due nor impaired. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amounts
of loan receivables mentioned above.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the financial
position of the above parties and had taking into account
their financial position, their business developments and
other factors, and concluded that no provision for
impairment of the loan receivables is necessary as at
31 December 2008 and 2009.

The carrying value of this asset approximates its fair value
as at 31 December 2009 and 2008.

et

(i) #HZEHBEET - BBEEALZERIE
32(ii) - Mz R FOAREER - BB 1E
FRRAR—FAEE - ZERERFAE
HEE -

(i) ZEBRIERUKBIFE=F 28R MZER
BAERR REA1BEFERER—FA
Bi8 - ZEHHEEF » 33,100,000/ 7T (=
T T )\ £ : 33,000,000/870) AfEKE X H
IREEARARZER ° 5% AR BERAT E
MAR ER_ZZTRFNA—+/\BRE
EARERH  ZRRIZBRHOEEEEE -
EWEXHIREBER AR ZERAN—EE
= EAERIEER -

R-BRNGEE_FFENF+_A=1+—
B BRERWARBHITFERE - REKER
HrzmaEERRA LR EREERZRE
8 -

ARRBEFRDRA N EALTZHBHOR - I
Bt RREF 2 HMBIRR - EHBREEME
= BRBEARBRERNR -_ZTTNFR-
ZETNF+ A=+ R ZHERELERDR
ERE -

RZBEENER_EENF+_A=+—
B ZEEZEEEEEAFEERE
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27. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 27. ENRM > HiEAKIE

ACCRUALS R Bt A
An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group as at 31 REER-_ZZNERZZFZTNGF+_HA=
December 2009 and 2008 is as follows: T—BZENERREESTAT
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EThE ZZTITN\F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET TET
Trade payables BE A BR K
Current to 3 months BNERZ= =& A 4,750 9,812
Over 1 year —FAE 2,946 3,862
Total trade payables FEfSERFR AR %R 7,696 13,674
Other payables and accruals FLh FE 1 5K I8 I FE 5T FRIE 27,055 28,625
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables of the NER B o AR B e AT B Rk B B Ath FE AN RRIE 2
Group and the Company approximate their fair values. FEEEHEEAFEERS -



ANNUAL REPORT 2009 % %

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U 5 % 4 Y ik

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
HE-—FTAFI-A=+—ALFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
COMPANIES

(a)

Pursuant to section 161B of the Companies
Ordinance, the amounts disclosed hereunder
represent amounts due from related companies in
which directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company
have held beneficial interests:

28. Bl FEBRE A B IR

(a)

REBERRMEDIZE161BIK - BRZIGHE
ZERIERWEERRZRIE - mA
ARAIETHBARZEZTRERRFA

=R

The Group RE
Bestcase Dragongem Jing Hua
Name of Hong Kong Resources (Allied)
related companies Limited Limited Limited Total
BELNRLHE AERRERAN HoHERARLE REM®A)ERAN Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiET TiET T
Balance B
At 31 December 2009 RZEEAET-A=1-H 611 93 1,155 2,709
At 31 December 2008 RZEENETZA=T-R - - - -
Maximum outstanding during EnFEREEIE 611 943 1,155 2,709
the year

The directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company
who have held beneficial interests of Bestcase Hong
Kong Limited, Dragongem Development Limited and
Jing Hua (Allied) Limited are namely Mr. Chan Nun
Chiu, Ms. Cheung Lim Mai Tak, Grace, Mr. Cheung
To Seng, Mr. Ng Wing Po and Mr. She Hing Chiu.

The amounts due from related companies are
unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

The amount due to a related company is unsecured,
interest free and is repayable on demand.

ARAZETHBRBS - REEE
BBERAR  EZEERERRAR
RE@ME)BERAPNFEEREREL
EERREREE - RMERELL
REAESLLE  RAOREERREFSL
o

EMEARRASERR 28R

J& 5 — 1 B

AIRIAREER 2
EREERERE -

N
iR

93



CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A B &g R 2= B BR A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U 5 % 4 Y ik

94

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
HE-—FTAFI-A=+—ALFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. [R7R
2009 2008
“EENE ZER)\E
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RHEE 8 kingE ¢8
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Authorised: S
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SR (E0.05% L2 EBK
At 1 January and 31 December m—A—-BR+ZA=1+-H 10,000,000,000 500,000 10,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SR (E0.05% L2 EBK
At 1 January W—A—H 3,023,900,000 151,195 3,023,900,000 151,195
Issue of shares for cash (i) BORMMAREALE () 604,780,000 30,239 — —
At 31 December “+ZA=+-H 3,628,680,000 181,434 3,023,900,000 151,195

30.

Note: On 8 October 2009, the Company raised approximately
HK$235,864,000, after expenses by issuing 604,780,000
shares by placements at subscription prices of HK$0.39 each
to provide additional working capital of the Group, resulting
in additional amount of approximately HK$30,239,000 and
HK$199,728,000 (net of expenses HK$5,897,000) standing
in the share capital and share premium account respectively.
All shares issued by the Company rank pari passu with the
then existing shares in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted conditionally by the Company on 28 January 2002
and amendments on 2 November 2006, the board of
directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant
options to the directors, employees and consultants of the
Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares of the
Company.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Max : RZFEZNF+ANAB » RRAFEBNE
EFAEZRBEETRO. 9B LB
604,780,000/% % 1 & & #7235,864,000/8
T (HBREYE)  UAKREEIREEIN S
BES  BUERAR RS = ERR S B3
#930,239,00078 7t %.199,728,0007% 7t (10
BR#1325,897,000/87T) ° AN ABIEITZ AT
ERMNES T EEERREERNEERSE

3 -

30. BERESE

BEARTN-_BZ_F— A=+ \BEE
R 2 BB REET 8 ([FZET 81 ) R R R =
T RNE+— A -RAERH 2B ARRE
EerNERARRIRENBARICES -
EENEBMELEREARERNRG 2K

,f/'\ ®

REBEZEARRRITAR T 2 RITEBK
2 LB EFRNZEEREEITER -
AR BREAIE B D #ITARD Z230% ° EA
HRIBIE EIRE — PR 2 BB LA BRR
RE LBEIRRLLAE -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. BBIRAESTE (&)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
option granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
12 months period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during the period commencing
immediately after the date on which the option is deemed
to be granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be
notified by the directors to each grantee which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted. According to the
Scheme, there is no provision requiring a minimum holding
period before an option may be exercised. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance on grant
of an option under the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

On 31 December 2008, the Company and directors,
employees agreed to cancel all 95,500,000 outstanding
share option. The fair value of HK$24,150,000 of the
unvested share option was recognized on share-based
payment expenses in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2008.

No shares were granted and exercised during the year ended
31 December 2008, 162,300,000 outstanding share options
were lapsed on 31 December 2008.

BPARBIES « (THRABHKEBRRSH
(ERCLE- INawrd - ¢ DIV SRl v
WITES 2B o AN - ERETZEARA
BRYADBEBRRFB IR TERRHE
{2 A £ 2 B RRHE - BB AR RIER
BEEETIRMDZ20.1%HEEBS
5,000,000/ 7T 2 f%1n (J&#% 1 B 8l 2 KA &)
RO ERTE) BEERBREASESRE
HEAE o

EHEERERREREIREEAZAEZES
BAZ AR ABRAEDH 2 BHIRE - AR
kT8l Z RRBER T R AR - X BRHIM A
B R IR R 2 B RSt TSR
BHF o RIFZAHE - ITEBRAER L B
RRBHZRTE - RIBZFTEIEAR L 2B
BREMHZRBARERVET

BRETEEKHESETE  ETBLIRT
FI=F z&keE - BN L EARE 2 B
LR A R B RG 2 W E : (DEEFRH
R B AT AR S BB AP AT R AN A
Bt 2 FHWTE + R>i)ARRIRMDEE °

PR AR T RS AR B IR AR
RELRRZHER -

RZBEZN\F+_A=+—H  KARIEE
= X EB R EE$H95,500,00010 M AT 2
ERE KAEBERECATEAE
24,150,000 TERBE_TEN\F+A
=t+—HIEFEZEZRIEURND T2
SRIBRE ©

HE-ZZT)\F+_A=+—HItEE I
ERERITERBRE R N\F+=A
=+—H ’ 162,300,000 i AR 7T = & A%
B SR -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. FERAESTE (&)
(a) Year ended 31 December 2008 (a) BZE==EENFE+=-A=+—HLE
E
Closing price
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled  Outstanding immediate
at beginning during during during during at end of hefore the
Date of grant of the year the year the year the year the year theyear  date of grant
RERL
REH RER B&EZ
REAH HATE FRERH ERERK EREXN EES HATE Wi
Directors: s
Mr. Chan ShiYung  EREISA%E 211112006 25,000,000 - - — (25,000,000 - 1620
Mr. Chan Wai Keung  BE% %4 21112006 25,000,000 - - —  (25,000,000) - 1620
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau  EXER %4 2/11/2006 25,000,000 - - — (25,000,000 - 1,620
Mr. Chang Kuo Tien ~ REIA%H 1222007 20,000,000 - —  (20,000,000) - - 149
Mr. Tong Seak Kan ~ EHREE 1222007 20,000,000 - —  (20,000,000) - - 149
Total directors e 115,000,000 - —  (40,000,000)  (75,000,000) -
Employees: E&:
21/7/2006 500,000 - — — (500,000) — 1.270
25/9/2006 45,000,000 - — (25,000,000) (20,000,000) — 1.350
Total Employees EE4Y 45,500,000 = = (25,000,000) (20,500,000) —
Others 0]
2/6/2006 25,000,000 - — (25,000,000) — — 1.660
25/9/2006 72,300,000 - — (72,300,000) — — 1.360
Total Others Ay 97,300,000 = = (97,300,000) — —

Total All Categories FIEEH4H 257,800,000 —

(162,300,000 (95,500,000) =
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise

(c)

30. RARAERTE ()

(b) BREZHBERMEFGTEEN

prices of share options are as follows: T
2008
—EE)N\F
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price share options
per share granted
FRRME BSRDBERE
FIGITE(E %A
Outstanding at beginning RER M ARITHE
of the year 1.51 257,800,000
Granted B H — —
Lapsed 2R 1.51 (162,300,000)
Cancelled B 5 8 1.51 (95,500,000)
Outstanding at the end RER B ARITHE
of the year —

Share-based payment expenses represent the
estimated fair value of services received or to be
received in exchange for the grant of the relevant
options over the vesting period. The total of which is
based on the fair value of the options at the date of
grant. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the options over the
relevant vesting periods and is recognised as staff costs
(Note 7) and related expenses with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve. The share-based
compensation benefits recorded for the year ended
31 December 2008 with respect to the options
granted amounted to HK$59,488,000 (Note 7) of
which HK$44,950,000 was recognised as staff cost
and of which HK$ 14,538,000 related to share options
granted to certain consultants of the Group and was
recognised as other operating expenses.

() AR A2 s B S Rk 5B 5P
A Bt 5% 1 B R AR AR P #R B B JE EX 3K,
HEIER RS 2 (At A FEE - Bl
BERHBHEAZEREATER
FTE o REMZREBINIEBGERE
ZAFEEREBESBHBEME
F o WHERAE TR (M15E7) R AaRE
7S 0 i RS AR R 4 T fF AR R g
meBE—_ZTTNFE+_A=+—H
IEFE  RERHBREL S Z AR
 BEE 2 FH B F) % 859,488,000
7 (ft#£7) » H 144,950,000/ T JHHE
RAEB LKA - MHEA 14,538,000/
TIEARE FASEES TERZER
BV ERBHEMEERSE -
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31. COMMITMENTS
(a) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain of its restaurants, staff
quarters, offices and warehouses under non-
cancellable operating lease arrangements with
remaining lease terms ranging from one to five years.
At 31 December 2009, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

31. &

(a)

REHERE

AEERBETAIRELEMRNLIE
RETER BIES WRERR
E HHRA—ERAFEF E - -R_ZFT
NEFE+ZA=+—0  AEERER
THFHRH 2 TRIRELERN
ARENREESERES

The Group
REH
2009 2008
—EBEFHhE —"ZZTN\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Within one year R—FA 9,501 25,242
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFERF (BREEREMT) — 7,941
9,501 33,183
(b) Capital commitments (b) EAREE

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, neither the Group
nor the Company had any capital commitment.

R-EZNFR_FTEN\F+_A=
+—H  AEERAQRTBEEMNE
A o
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note. Details of transactions between the Group and other
related parties are disclosed below. During the year and in

32. BEALIRS

AAREEBRARRBFEALZMEAR
EITZXHEREAKRAFHE - AENA
FIFEEE - AREEHEBEEATETZR
SHBERENT - FARRAKEZAEE
BiBies AEBEFAEEKEAEZEHE

the ordinary course of business, the Group had the following BATEUNTEARS
material transactions with related parties which are not

members of the Group:

Key management personnel remuneration FTEEEAEHE

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

RTAEEIEERABZHME (BEAA
RABEXMNZEH) BERMBEHRERM T
13

2009 2008
—EZAFE —ZTT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHETT TET
Rental expenses paid to related companies  BEffRE QA RHEE M (B 72E0)

(note (i) 3,680 3,400
Loans to a related party (notes (i) and (iii)) MR A 5% B SR (B i) K (iii)) 9,109 10,000
Interest income from a related party M) B E A T WELZ 7 B4 A

(notes (i) and (iii) ( M#EI(;‘/)&(///)) 188 115
Sales of food to related companies MEAERRIEERM 8,333 —
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

The rental expenses were paid to:

(@) N.W.P. Investments Limited (“N.W.P.
Investments”), which is controlled indirectly by
a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wing Po’s
wife and certain of his children are beneficiaries.
Mr. Ng is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and a director of N.W.P.
Investment. The rental expenses were based on
the agreement signed with the Group.

(b) Hon Po Investment Limited of which directors
of certain subsidiaries of the Company have a
beneficial interest. The rental expenses were
based on the tenancy agreements signed with
the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2008, this related party transaction also
constitutes connected party transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
advanced the unsecured loans of HK$10,000,000 with
the interest charges of 12% per annum and repayable
within 1 year to China Water Industry Group Limited
(“China Water"”) of which Mr. Chang Kin Man, the
independent non-executive director of the Company,
is the independent non-executive director of the China
Water. The loan has been fully repaid in 2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
advanced the unsecured loans of HK$9,109,000 with
the interest charges range from 6% to 12% per
annum to Birmingham International Holdings Limited
(“Birmingham”) of which Mr. Ip Wing Lun and Mr.
Chang Kin Man, the independent non-executive
director of the Company, resigned on 24 December
2009 and 30 December 2009 respectively, are the
executive directors of the Birmingham and Mr. Chan
Wai Keung, the executive director of the Company,
resigned on 1 October 2009, is the non-executive
director of the Birmingham. The loans were fully
repaid on 9 December 2009.

32. FE

i)

(iii)

AEREG (&)
HemZ T

(@) MHEEBEBARRR ([HRIRE])
BMRKEEEZETFRETTX
REEAZ BREEFRBES
REERARRETHEBRARZ
B U/AKEREZES -H
ERAXIRBEANREMAZER 2
&t & o

(b) ZEEREBRAR  AARRE
THERRZEEHREESE
& o HERX HREEANKER
R < HEHREFTE - BE-F
ENF+A=+—HIEFE
ZEREAN TR G IER LR
AIERZHEALRS -

BE_ZTEZNF+_A=+—HI#F
B AEBERFRKEEEFRAQF
([ EKE]) BN EIKFER
10,000,000/ 7T + =& F 12 B WELF|
B AR—FREE - AARBIIE
HITESERRAEAPEKEZB
VIHERITESE - ZEHERERZ=ZZZT

NEEXEBEE -

HE_ZZAF+-_A=1+—HIF
£ AEBERBEEHRKIERERAD
B ([1AE®H]) & EKFER
9,109,000/ T ' B F6EE12B U
BHE R ZEENF+=A=1+NH
BER-—ZETAFE+_A=THLEEE
FEZARRRBIIENITEBFE XL
EREEREEBBHEBHZHTE
= -R-ZTEZEAFT+A—BHEEZA
RAMTESRERLERERAB 2
FRITES - ZEHERERZ=ZZZT L
F+-ANBEHEE -
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 3 July 2009, the Group disposed of its subsidiaries,
namely Bestcase Hong Kong Limited, Dragongem Resources
Holdings Limited and Jing Hua (Allied) Limited to Speedy
Fortune Limited of which directors of certain subsidiaries
of the Company have the beneficial interests.

The net assets of those disposed subsidiaries at the date of

disposal were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2009

33.

eh=—1i0) WN

RZZBZNFLA=R ~EERKERR
AREAHEEMBARAESTERRAG - #
ZEERARNALRRE M) ERAR -
RRABETHBRARZEETNZEARTHE

BE S -

ZEREEHBATNEE B AERE
m -

BE-_ZZhEFE+=-B=+—HILEE

2009
—EENF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
B &t FET FET
Assets disposed of: EHEBRE :
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BB RHE 9,812
Rental deposits and other deposits HerTe RHMET2 5,428
Inventories FE 1,013
Trade receivables & W AR 3R 332
Other receivables, deposits Hi e - 5Te &
and prepayments T 5RI8 932
Tax recoverable Al Y B # 2B 327
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRE 6,019
23,863
Liabilities disposed of: EHEBE :
Trade payables FEHBR K (7,047)
Other payables and accruals H A S FRIE % e AT FRIE (8,241)
Amounts due to a related company FE SR8 E N | A (1,205)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIE B & (77)
Provision for long service payments RERB S BE (646)
(17,216)
Net assets EEFE 6,647
Satisfied by: ATRFNE A
Total consideration BRE (9,031)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LB A R 2 s (2,384)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEAZRESMAFE :
Cash consideration received BUEz B e RE 9,031
Bank balances and cash disposed off BEHERITEHRKIIRS (6,019)
3,012

101



CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED B g 8 5 354 i B R A &)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U 5 % 4 Y ik

For The Year Ended 31 December 2009
HE-—FTAFI-A=+—ALFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HENBAR &)
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZZEN\F+_A=+—HILFE
As disclosed in note 15, the net assets of the Disposal Group MMIEE1SAT#HE - HESBRNEERMZE
at the date of disposal were as follows: EFENT :
2008
—EEI)NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
k=3 FET FET
Assets disposed of: BEHEEE :
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB K& 87,967
Rental deposits and other deposits HeiTe REMETS 83
Trade receivables JE W BR 7k 10,406
Other receivables, deposits and Hi e - 5T K&
prepayments T 5RIE 7,824
Bank balances and cash RTEBR MRS 25,516
131,796
Liabilities disposed of: EHEBE :
Accounts payable FE T BR R (41,794)
Accruals fEET A (881)
Bank overdraft RITEX (7,161)
Trust Receipt/invoice financing loan Bt Y (2,130)
Bank loans RITER (48,544)
(100,510)
Net assets BEFE 31,286
Attributed goodwill FEih A 20 284,272
Satisfied by: ATREIA A
Cash Re (38,000)
Deferred consideration RENRE 25 (38,743)
Total consideration BRE (76,743)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENRB AR ZEE 15 238,815
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PEEEZRESRAFE :
Cash consideration received BWE2HERE 38,000
Bank balances and cash disposed off BEHERITEH LIRS (25,516)
Bank overdraft disposed off EHERTEX 7,161
19,645
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

35.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

° To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

o To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group has not
adopted any formal dividend policy.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities.

The main risks arising from the Groups' financial instruments
in the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price
risk.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

34.

35.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for
the deposits for acquisition, the financial assets held
for trading, the refundable deposits and the loan
receivables that were further explained in Note 19,
24, 25 and 26 respectively, the Group principal
financial assets are bank balances placed with
reputable banks. Given their high credit standing,
management does not expect any credit risk exposure
for those bank balances. For credit exposures to
customers, Group management has policies in place
to ensure that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Sales to restaurant
customers were settled in cash or through credit cards.
For credit exposures associated with the refundable
deposits and loan receivables, Group management
had assessed the credit quality of the debtors, taking
into account their financial position, their business
developments and other factors. In addition, the
Group ensures that the amount of the loan is within
the limit set by the Group.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are within
one year as at the end of each reporting period. The
contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities equal their carrying amounts as shown on
the statements of financial position as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

35. IEAKRER &)

(a)

(b)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
liabilities, and the financial assets are bank balances
held with financial institutions. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rate.

Currency risk

Currency risk to the Group is minimal as most of the
Group’s transactions are carried out in Hong Kong
dollars.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity instruments classified as trading securities.
All of these investments are listed.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities compared to
that of the Index and other industry indicators, as well
as the Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is
diversified in terms of industry distribution, in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of reporting period. If equity price had been 5%
higher, the loss for the year ended 31 December 2009
would have been decreased by HK$2,358,000 (2008:
HK$1,457,000). Had the relevant equity price been
5% lower, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

Fair value of financial instruments

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial instruments
that are carried at fair value by level of the following
fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted price included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data.

At 31 December 2009, the Group's financial assets
held for trading as disclosed in note 24 are measured
at fair value, which is categorised as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and measured fair
value based on Level 1 fair value measurement
hierarchy. During the year, there were no transfers of
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2.
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36. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2009 and 2008

36. TRIEEREE

AEBETRHEENRER _TTNFNR_F
ENF+_A=1T—"BHAZKREEN SR

may be categorised as follows: AR
Carrying amounts Fair value
REE NFEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF —TENF —EENE —EENFE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET FEIT
Financial assets cRMEE
Fair value through profit BATEERER
or loss held for trading §\JB§&%{’E,V 49,405 29,481 49,405 29,481
Loan and receivables B B
(including cash and (Fjﬁfﬁi&
bank balances) SRITHERR) 629,627 428,675 629,627 428,675
Financial liabilities cHEE
Financial liabilities REHK ARG EZ
measured at amortised TRAE
cost 52,449 68,399 52,449 68,507

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 January 2010, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, Kingston Securities
Limited, pursuant to which the placing agent procured, on
a best-effort basis, the placing of 725,000,000 new shares
at HK$0.45 per placing share. The placing of new shares
has been completed on 22 February 2010. The net proceeds
from the placing of new shares amounted to approximately
HK$317.9 million. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated on 28 January 2010 and
22 February 2010.

37. BEHERER

RZFE—ZEF—A=+/7\H ' AARHEREE
RESHLELFERAR L EEWE

It BEERIBIRIB N1 %%ﬁﬁf@xﬂxﬁﬂ
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Results 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
EF 5 “EERE —ZTN\F —TELFE —ZTERF —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHETT TFHET TFHET TFHET
Turnover EEH 161,840 339,225 247,665 213,330 186,023
Loss before taxation BRI AT E1E (11,950)  (356,829) (32,441) (47,391) (19,551)
Taxation I8 — — — — (2,491)
Loss before minority Rt DERE
interests R Al E 1B (11,950)  (356,829) (32,441) (47,391) (22,042)
Minority interests DHBRREE — — — 1 2
Loss for the year REFEEE (11,950)  (356,829) (32,441) (47,390) (22,040)
Assets and liabilities 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
EERER “EEHhE —TENF —TELF —TEXF _—ZTTHF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT TFHET TFHET TFHET
Total assets BEME 692,179 490,817 881,806 167,554 167,684
Total liabilities BER (52,686) (69,341)  (162,989) (89,783) (79,188)
Minority interests LHBRRES (753) (753) (753) (753) (754)
Attributable to owners ~ ARNATEEB AJEN
of the Company 638,740 420,723 718,064 77,018 87,742







